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Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to amend the contract with Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. (TCCAP), Berlin, NH, Vendor #177195, by increasing the
price limitation by $6,000, from $232,175 to $238,175 for the Weatherization Assistance Program's
Sustainable Energy Resources for Consumers grant, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval through June 30, 2025. The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on January 31, 2024, Item #66 and amended on June 12,2024, Item #5J. There is no time
extension being requested for this contract. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the accounting unit. Low Income Weatherization. as follows:

FY 2025

02-52-52-520510-33560000-074-500587 $6,000

EXPLANATION

The Department applied for and received this competitively awarded Sustainable Energy Resources for
Consumers (SERC) grant, funded through the USDOE's Weatherization Assistance Program. Per the
Department's application and the terms of this award, funds will be used to install heat pump space
heating systems in manufactured homes that currently use kerosene as their primary heating source,
owned by low-income weatherization-eligible clients, to alleviate the issues associated with kerosene
supplies. The Department estimates that this SERC grant award will contribute to the installation of heat
pumps in approximately eight homes in the TCCAP territory, which consists of Carrol, Coos, and Graflon
Counties.

The Department is requesting an additional $6,000 to allow for the SERC funds to be fully spent out in
PY24.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Respectfully submitted.

lared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



CONTRACT AMENDMENT #2

This Contract Amendment (Amendment) is entered into by and between the State of New
Hampshire, acting by and through the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department), 21
S. Fruit Street, Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301, (hereinafter referred to as State) and Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc., 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570 (hereinafter referred to
as the Contractor), collectively referred to as (the Parties).

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a contract, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on January 31, 2024, Item #66 and amended on June 12, 2024, Item #5J
(hereinafter referred to as the Contract);

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to extend and amend the Contract as provided in this
Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Contract allows for amendments by an instrument in writing executed by
both Parties;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract, and set forth herein, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

1. P-37, Section 1.8, Price Limitation, of the existing Contract by deleting the
current sum of $232,175 and inserting in place thereof: $238,175.

2.. Exhibit C: Paragraph 2, Amend by deleting $232,175.00 (which hereinafter is
referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which $18,825.00 may be expended
for Administration," and inserting in place thereof "$238,175 (which hereinafter
is referred to as the "(Contracted Amount"), of which $24,825 may be expended
for Administration."

3. This Amendment hereunder shall become effective upon approval by the New
Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.

4. Except as specifically amended anjd modified by the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, the Contract and the obligations of the Parties hereunder, shall
remain in full force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein.

IN WITNESS WI-IEREOF, the Parties hereto haye set their hands the date first-written
below.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

By: . . Date:
Print Name an^Title OfPvC^

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EE0009916; Award Date: 07/01/2022 Contractor Initials
SERC WAP ALN# 81.042 ' " Date
Tri-County Communiry Action Program, Inc. ' Page 1 of 2



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

bep/rtment o^£fi£rgy

ed S. Chicoine, Commissioner
:  Ljlidsr-Date:

/Approval by the Attorney General's Office (Form, Substance and Execution)

5/2/2025
Date:

Print Name and Title

Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

G&C Meeting Date: G«feC Item #:

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EE00099I6; Award Dale: 07/01/2022 Contractor Initials
SERC WAP ALN# 81.042 Date
Tri-Coiraty Community Action Program, Inc. Page 2 of 2



state of New Hampshire
1

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. David M.-Scanlan. Secretar>' of Slate of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRl-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretar>' of State's ofllce have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0007142560

SI

S&.

O

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1 St day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar\' of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

_Sandy Alonzo . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of _Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on May 17th^ , 20;3M . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard. Randall Pllotte. Brenda Gaone (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program. INC. to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation Iri contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:Jii9lA\25_
Signature of Elefcjifed Officer
Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title: "Bccro

Rev. 03/24/20



ACCORD* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/bO/YYYY)

01/09/2025 ,

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER' THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. ̂
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject,to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endor$ement(s).

PRODUCER

Cross Insurance-Manchester . '

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

contact Lindsey Goodrich

(603)669-3218 (603)64^331

ADMFSS- manch,certs@crossagency.com

INSURERfS) AFFORbiNC COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A; PhiladelpNa Indemnity Ins Co 18058

INSURED

Trl-County Community Action Program. Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin NH 03570

INSURER B: Granite State Health Care and Human Sen/ices Self-

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E ;

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN,.THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. . ' .'

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AUUL

IHSD

SUUK

wvn POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/OOfYYYYl
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY) UMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GE1ERAL LIABILITY

E  1 X| OCCUR

PHPK2571941 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
j 1.000.000

CLAIMS-MAD

DAMAGE TO RENTIO
PRFMISFS IFb occurrencel

J 100.000

MEO EXP (Any one person)
J 5.000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
5 1,000.000

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE
, 3.000.000 '■

X POLICY 1_J 1 1 LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMPfOP AGO 5 3.000.000
•  «.

A

1

AUTOMOBILE liABtLITY

PHPK2571943 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fFaecdrienil

s 1,000.000

X ANYALTTO

HEOULED
TOS
N.OWNED
rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc BODILY INJURY (Per ecddent) $

NC PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer scddenti s

s

A

UMBRELLA LiAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHUB870544 07/01/2024 07/01/2025
EACH OCCURRENCE J 2.000.000

X AGGREGATE J 2,000.000

DED X RETENTION S s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y! N
ANY PROPRIETORrPARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? "
(Mandatory In NH)
If y«s. dascribe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A R01892HCHS2025-01 (3a.) NH 01/01/2025 01/01/2026

w PER OTH-
^ STATUTE FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 5 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 5 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
, 1,000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERAnONS/LOCAnONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addition^ R«m«nu Sch«dui«, may b« ■tuehcd If mort apact I* raQuirad). -

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

NH Department of Energy

21 South Fruit SL. Ste. 10

Concord NH 03301

1  •

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE. '
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action.Program, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, the related statement of activities for the
year ended June 30. 2024, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2024, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibiiities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tri-County'
Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern within one year
after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional onriissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
In the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material
respects. In relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 13,
2024, on our consideration of Tri-Cbunty Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting arid on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an .opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit'performed in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards In considering Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliates' 2023 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our
report dated November 13, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, is consistent, in all material respects, with the
audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2024



TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Right of use asset, operating
Restricted cash

2024

4,658,626

1,026,499

2,044,392
284,892
102,774

179.803

8,296,986

12,831,168

(6,994.869)

5,836,299

123,817

449,389

2023

4,400,730

1,313,655
2,024,546

192,212

123,409

138.888

8,193,440

12,858,931

(6,522.499)

6,336,432

208,857

413,721

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

573,206 622,578

$  14,706,491 $ 15,152,450

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of right of use liability, operating
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Right of use liability, operating, less current portion
Long term debt, net of current portion

Total liabilities

135,315

59,260

273,732

227,225
89,951
106,809

85,188
1,135,480

2,112,960

64,557
4,108,684

6,286.201

139,961

86,219
456,444

249,777

90,948
95,772

403,239
1.342.462

2,864,822

122,638
4,296,550

7,284,010

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

8,074,913

345,377

8,420,290

7,577,645

290,795

7,868,440

$  14,706,491 $ 15,152,450

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2024

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grants and contracts

Program funding
Utility programs
In-kind contributions

Contributions

Fundraising
Rental income

Interest income

Gain on disposal of property
Other revenue

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and

net assets released from restrictions

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund
Head Start

Guardianship
Transportation
Volunteer

Carroll County Dental
Homeless

Energy and Community Development
Elder

Housing Services

Total program services

Supporting Activities:

General and administrative

Fundraising

Total supporting activities

. Total functional expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2024

Total

2023

Total

$  17,113,827

1,054,639
1.680,558

422,563

354,046

32,778

889,403
79,025

800

1,708

$  263,021 $  17,376,848

1,054,639

1,680,558
422,563

354,046

32,778

889,403

79,025

800

1.708

$ 39,804,923

1,131,923
1,458,145

479,251

252,119

23,626

867,061
26,196

6,817

2.735

21,629,347 263,021 21,892,368 44,052,796

208,439 (208,439) . -

21,837,786 54,582 21,892,368 44,052,796

1,295,519

3,171,577

601,621

1.810.631
72,341

585,935

1.151.632

9,943,891

1,287,154

212,242

-

1,295,519
3,171,577

601,621

1.810.631

72,341

585,935

1.151.632

9,943,891

1,287,154

212,242

1,314,337

3,107,886
651,255

1,404,213

72,150

679,379
20,422,871

13,099,599
1,276,827
212,979

20,132,543 20.132,543 42,241,496

1,204,546

3,429

- 1,204,546

3,429

1,236,580

3,315

1,207.975 . 1,207,975 1,239,895

21,340,518 21,340,518 43,481,391

497,268 54,582 551,850 571,405

7,577.645 290,795 7,868,440 7,297,035

$  8,074,913 $  345,377 $  8,420,290 $  7.868.440

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities;

Depreciation
Gain on disposal of property

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property

Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment oh long-term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest

2024

$  551.850

529,444

(800)

(19.846)
(92.680)
20,635

(40,915)

(182.712)

(22,552)
(997)

11,037

(318,051)
(206.982)

227,431

800

(30,198)

(29,398)

(191.625)

(191,625)

6.408

6,128,106

2023

$  571,405

527,962
(6,817)

(217,272)
(23,016)
(63,650)

(77)

193,971

21,435

9,241

(21,643)

(42,969)
257,056

1,205,626

8,091

(161,013)

(152,922)

(139,920)

(139,920)

912,784

5,215,322

$  6,134,514 $ 6.128,106

84,383 $ 88,845

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated" because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction, and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to'early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 14
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 208 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 50
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 15,000 hours yearly.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Carroll County Dental

Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventalive, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other prograrris offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low-Income Weatherization

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the. frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

11



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit is performed as it
relates to Cornerstone's compliance with its major federal program in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America: the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
An unmodified opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Th-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and affiliate have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than
contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date
of receipt or payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAR), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

12



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not

subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for
any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions
are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $345,377 and $290,795
at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. See Note 12.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. Past due receivables are
written off at management's discretion using the direct write off method; this is not
considered a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States because the effects of the direct write off method approximate those of the
allowance method. Management selects accounts to be written off after analyzing
past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable, and collection rates for
receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of time outstanding. This is
the basis to determine expected credit losses for receivables. The Organization
believes that the composition of receivables at year-end is consistent with historical
conditions. The Organization does not charge interest on outstanding accounts
receivable.

13



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'  FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the,related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $85,188 and $403,239 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

14



TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a' not-for-profit, Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns in the
United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement, of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
Management does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue (pode. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the Organization's
403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or

that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor

restrictions.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2024 and 2023.

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $284,892 and $192,212,
respectively. This amount is included in contributions in the Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and ■ other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the

various programs and supporting services based on actual or
estimated time employees spend on each function as reported on a
timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program
.  based upon the classification of each employee and allocated to the
various program based upon the time employees spend on each
function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each
program as a percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These
expenses include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health
and dental insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is
allocated to each program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon
specific assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation
expense on the statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are
used by multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the
benefiting program based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs
related to a building include depreciation, insurance, utilities, building
maintenance, etc. These costs are reported as space costs on the
statements of functional expenses.

17



TRUCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on
vehicle usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs
based on square footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture
and equipment is allocated to programs using the book basis of the
insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost
Pool and are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of
program expenses. The expenses include items such as
administrative salaries, general liability insurance, administrative
travel, professional fees, and other expenses \A/hich cannot be
specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $16,164 and
$20,143, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs" The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2024 and 2023.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30! 2024 AND 2023

Cornerstone derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as income, monthly, when rents, become due and control of the apartment
unit is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term of one year and
are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred to the lessee
in an amount that reflects the consideration Cornerstone expects to be entitled to in
exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed
as incurred.

New Accounting Pronouncement

At July 1, 2023, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial
Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments, as amended, which modifies the measurement of expected
credit losses on certain financial instruments. The Organization adopted this'new
guidance utilizing the modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this
Standard did not have a material impact on the Organization's financial statements
but did change how the allowance for credit losses is determined.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2024
and 2023;

2024 2023

Finaricial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 4,658,626 $ 4,400,730
Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program 1,026,499 1,313,655
Accounts receivable 2,044,392 2,024,546
Pledges receivable 284,892 192,212
Restricted cash 449.389 413.721

Total financial assets 8.463.798 8.344.864
Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 345.377 290,795

Restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program 1,026,499 1,313,655
Restricted cash 449,389 413,721
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

itiet in less .than a year (310.948) (254.537)

Amounts not available within one year 1.510.317 1.763.634

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 6.953.481 $ 6.581.230

19



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $3,352,000 and $6,982,000 at June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTES. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

2024 2023

Cash, operations
Restricted cash, current

Restricted cash, long term

Total cash and restricted cash

$  4,658,626
1,026,499
449.389

6.134.514

$  4,400,730
1,313,655
413.721

Cash Restrictions

The Organization was required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It was required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which was restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service were required to be
replenished with monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance was
achieved. As the note payable was paid off during the year ended June 30, 2024,
there was no balance at June 30, 2024. The balance at June 30, 2023 was
$20,079 and is included in restricted cash in the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position for the year ended June 30, 2023. The Organization made all of
their scheduled deposits for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2024 and 2023 was $174,841, and the Organization was in compliance with this
requirement. These amounts are included in restricted cash in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $1,026,499 and $1,313,655,
respectively. These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of
Financial Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2024

and 2023 was $1,026,499 and $1,313,655, respectively, and is included in the
restricted cash. Guardianship Services Program balance on the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $274,548 and $218,801, respectively. See Note 14.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2024 and 2023, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk: These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2024 and 2023 consists of weatherization materials,
totaling $102,774 and $123,409, respectively.

NOTE 5. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2024:

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$40,149,618

2,262,710

418,840

Accumulated

Depreciation

$  5,137,508
1,857,361

Net

Book Value

$  5,012,110
405,349

418.840

$ 12 831 168 $ 6.994.869 $ 5.836.299
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2023:

Capitalized
Cost

Accumulated

Depreciation

Net

Book Value

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
Land

$ 10,119,418 $ 4,630,469 $ 5,488,949
2,278,559 1,892,030 386,529

42,114

418.840

42,114

418.840

S 12 858 931 $ 6.522.499 S 6.336.432

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled
$529,444 and $527,962, respectively.

NOTE S. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

For the years ending June 30. 2024 and 2023, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2024 and
2023, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $227,225 and $249,777,
respectively.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of
the following:

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360
monthly installments of $1,664, including interest
at 5% per annum. Secured by general business
assets. The note was paid off during 2024.

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936,, including interest at 4%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2031.

2024 2023

$  64,236

209,941 236,057

22
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of
2.75% plus the bank's internal cost of funds
multiplied by 67% with an indicative rate of
3.28%. Secured by first commercial real estate
mortgage on various properties and assignments
of rents at various properties. Final installment
due August 2040. 2,173,841 2,276,888

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. This capital advance is not
subject to interest or principal amortization and
will be forgiven after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage
payable due to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority. The mortgage is not subject to interest
or principal amortization. Payments are deferred
for 40 years; final payment due in August 2047.

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized debt issuance costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

4,251,382 4,444,781

(7.3831 (8.2701

4,243,999 4,436,511

(135.3151 (139.9611

$ 4.108.684 $ 4.296.550

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2025 $ 135,315

2026 140,153

2027 143,926

2028 148,439

2029 153,097

Thereafter 3.530,452

.  ̂ $ 4.251.382
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

As described at Note 3, the Organization was required to maintain a reserve
account with a bank for the first note payable listed above.

NOTES. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023 at 9.50% and 9.25% per annum, respectively. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 2023. The line is subject to renewal each
February.

NOTE 9. OPERATING LEASES

The right of use (ROD) asset represents the Organization's right to use underlying
assets for the lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the Organization's
obligation to make lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and
lease liabilities, all of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on
the present value of future lease payments over the lease terms. The Organization
has elected to discount future cash flows at the risk-free borrowing rates
commensurate with the lease terms, which was 3.01%, at the time of implementing
ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). Common expenses, classified as space costs in
the accompanying financial statements, are considered a non-lease component
under FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs are incurred. The Organization's
operating leases are described below.

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month-to-month basis.
For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $189,337 and $192,365, respectively.

The weighted average remaining lease term at June 30, 2024 is 1.64 years and the
weighted average discount rate at June 30, 2024 is 3.09%.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2024 AND 2023

Lease liability maturities as of June 30, 2024 are as follows;

Year Ending
June 30: Amount

2025 $ 59,685

2026 52,460

2027 11,372

2028 4.737

Total undiscounted lease liability 128,254
Less imputed interest (4.437)

Total lease liability $ 123.817

Subsequent to year end. the Organization entered into multiple lease agreements
for office equipment, ranging from four to five years. The future minimum lease
payments on these leases are as follows:

Year ending
June 30: Amount

2025 $ 12,780
2026 15,336

2027 15,336

2028 15,336

2029 15,046

Thereafter 2.498

£  76.332

NOTE 10. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Transportation Total

Professional services

and services for

disabled $ 68,708 $ - $ 26,675 $ 95,383

Packing, setup and
delivery of
congregate and
home delivered

meals : 141.565 : 141.565

S  68.708 $ 141.565 $ 26.675

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Professional services and

services for disabled $ 76,770 $ - $ 76,770
Packing, setup and delivery of

congregate and home
delivered meals : 102.077 102.077

$  76.770 £ 102.077 £ 178.847

Numerous volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to the
Organization's program services. Although no amounts have been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, management estimates the fair value of those
services.to be approximately $400,250 and $367,930 for the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2024 are as follo\A/s:

Head Senior

Start Meals Transportation RSVP Total

Difference

between

rent paid
and market

rate S 68.291 $ 5.500 £ 6.818 $ 1.600 £ 82.209

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Difference between rent

Paid and market rate £ 69.097 £ 4.100 £ 73.197

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses .for the year ended
June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Head Start RSVP Transportation Total

Employee use of
home $ 79,563 $ - $ - $ 79,563

Donated goods : 560 23.283 23.843

Total £ 79.563 £ 560 £ 23.283 £ 103.406

The fair value of other'gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statehients and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Head Start Homeless Transportation Total

Employee use of
home $ 73,495 $ - £ - $ 73,495

Donated goods - - 24,948 24,948
Hotel rooms for

homeless clients : 128.764 128.764

Total £ 73.495

27
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NOTE 11. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, approximately
$16,920,800 (77%) and $39,361,300 (89%), respectively, of the Organization's total
revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a significant
reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant impact on
the Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone receives a large majority of its support from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
approximately 60%. and 61%, respectively, of Cornerstone's total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone's assets are apartment projects, for which operations
are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In addition.
Cornerstone operates in a regulated environment. The operation of Cornerstone is
subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or an
administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes may occur with little
notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the administrative
burden, to comply with the change. i

NOTE 12. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023 '

Temporary municipal funding $  284,892 $ 192,212

Restricted buildings 34,431 36,257

FAP/EAP 1,681 14,092

Head Start 1,472 3,577

Loans - HSGP 22,901 23,484

RSVP program funds - 15,708

CC Coos - 5,099

CC Carroll - 180

CC Grafton - 180

LIWAP Program - 6

Total net assets with donor restrictions $  345.377 $ 290.795
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NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including" use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

Xhe exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

NOTE 14. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS
Under Cornerstone's regulatory agreement with HUD, the Organization is required
to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the replacement of property
and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-restricted deposits of
$264,483 and $207,956 were held in a segregated account at June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, HUD approved a loan from the replacement
reserve account to the operating account to cover operating expenses due to the
delay in HAP vouchers being processed by HUD. During the year ended June 30,
2024, the $26,649 loan was paid back to the replacement reserve account. HUD
restricted deposits generally are not available for operating purposes.
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Cornerstone's use of the residual receipts account is contingent upon HDD's prior
written approval. Residual receipts of $6,455 and $6,454 were held in a segregated
account for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Under the regulatory agreement. Cornerstone is required to set aside amounts for the
return of resident paid deposits. At June 30, 2024 and 2023 $3,610 and $4,391,
respectively, were held in a segregated account and generally are not available for
operating purposes.

HUD has initialed policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of Cornerstone's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated events through November 13, 2024, which is. the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued.
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NOTE C-INDIRECT RATE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the financial
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024 and
2023, and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related notes to the financial statements, and the related statement of activities for
the year ended June 30, 2024 and have issued our report thereon dated November 13, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider.lo be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Th-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance \with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America: the standards, applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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We are required to be independent of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to TrI-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional - omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there Is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of-deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. .However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing t)ased on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2024
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2024

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based oh an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during
the audit are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for. Each
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

\

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Low Income Home Energy
Assistance Program - ALN 93.568

U.S. Department of the Energy, Weatherization Assistance for Low Income
Persons - ALN 81.042

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Activities to Support State, Tribal.
Local and Territorial (STLT) Health Department Response to Public Health or
Healthcare Crises - ALN 93.391

NON- Federal, Public Utilities, Electrical Assistance Program

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Serving Coos, Carroll & Grafton Counties since 1965

Board of Directors

FY2d25

Coos County

Board Chair

Sandy Alonzb

Business •

Interim Secretary

Brian Hoffman

Business

Carroll County

Melissa Mullen

Business

Treasurer

John Bolton

Low Income

Grafton County

Linda Massimilla

Elected Official

Vice Chair

Ruth Heintz

Business-Attorney

Brian Bresnahan

Low Income

jared Sullivan

Elected Official



Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Key Personnel BIL

Name Job Title Salary % of Salary Paid

by contract

Amount paid by
contract

Jeanne Robillard CEO $132,000 N/A N/A

Randal! Pilottc CFO $90,000 N/A N/A

Brenda Gagne Interim CPO $77,080 N/A N/A

Jerry Miiiiken Department Head $65,600 25% $16,400

Dennis Downs Program Director $52,000 50% $25,000



Jleanne L* I[tobilla)*d

rOHE yrHE]V«THiS

Program dcvdopmcn^ management and adminUtradon • Community coIUboratioM
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet fundcr standards

Grant writing and management ♦ Budget petfomunee and Cnanaa) reporting
Innovative solutions & problem solving • Capacity budding

Professional presentations * Public speaJdng
Dedication ♦ Imagjcadon ♦ Determination ♦ Fortitude

pHftFEXXlOlVAl FXPERgEWfCE

T*i«Coanty Commimity Action Program*. Inc.
Chief Executive (Hficcr
Berlin. NH 2018 - eammi FTmpU^metU

TM^Cennly Comnannily Action Program*. Inc.
Chief Operating Otticcr
Berlin. NH 3016 *2018
Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 indrndoal programs^t provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire. Esscnaal dunes include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program resources, revenues cx^dmires
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategics to improve individual programs and overall ̂ cy pio^m
and fiscal pcxformancc; oversee and lead spe<^ piojecu such as the Annual Report. Stratt^c Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

XrWCoxxnty Commaiiily ActSan Pf^^gram*. Inc.
Division Diredon TCCAP Prevention Service*
Beriin. NH 2015.3016 . o
Responsible foi four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevenuon Servic^ ^
divi^n resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise prograin directors; tratt g^ts
ro support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and tinanaal statements for binders
and agency, develop fbndraJsing and marketing strategies for programs; repiesmt progr^ through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service deilvety;
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri^CooBty Commdnity Aeilon Progroni*, Inc.
Progrftm/Division Director: Siqtport Center at Barefa Honoe
Littleton. New Homyhire 3007-2015 . j i
Oversee daily opcrarion and supervision of domestic and sexual violence cnsis center and residential
shcJrcr; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and prepare grant rqxirts and finanaal
statements for fundcrs and parent agency; oversee program resources, rcvcoues and expendmircs, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strat(^c goals; create and diiat vicdm advocacy
proerams tVensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and fcder^ law, develop
fuadraising and marketing strategics; participate in state and local coUaboraaons to enhance victirn
services; represent program in state and federal victim service initiatives, including presentation of
-legislative testimony; acatc and present trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.



JLRobi]lard^2

Bookkeeper! Women*® Rnral EnlreprenenrUl Network 4WHEN>
NH cnrrent FT eaploTmeiU ^ . ..

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, repotting, funds release and account t^sf^, bi-weekly payroll
and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accosts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB recondliation for three
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Dimccots.

TH-Coonty Commanhy ileiion Program®, Inc.
Direci Servkses/VolBoSecr CoordtBator: SnppoH Center at Boreli Hoime
litaleton. New Hampahire IW7 te 3007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise coun
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and int^s; develop agwcy systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach ̂ esentatioris and campai^; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12; provide on-call coverage of cnsis bnc

Dircdon naverhin Area JnTcnile iM»er®ioii Program
Wood®viMe. New Hampriiire 1909-3001
Recruit, train and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community programming tor
diverted youi; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between foe court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and filecourt reports on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Connaeior/Tia® I Tenehert Noi^barii Family
Jeffereen, New Hampeliire 1090-1999

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilicatc peer support groups, develop
and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and tutor youth m
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Edngatlop

BS In Hnman Services. SpringGeld CoUege School ol Human Servieca, Boston. MA
Oaminal Justice Concentration, Gradmttd onth 4.0 CPA

AS in Drng and Aleohol Rehabilitation Ceanselisig ̂ DABC Program^
Sonthem Conneeiieot Comminiity College. New Haven, CT

AdiKiioir"! Profcssinnfll Leadership Awd rivir Affplaalaons
♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen. Town of Bethlehem Twice Heaed 2006-2010
♦ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-200^,Trtasttnr 1996-1998
♦ Chairman, HaverhiU Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003
♦ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network 2014; ItuiinAulMtttiber2008-2017
♦ Bcfolchcm Planning Board 2010-2015
♦ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - aarmi

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabmet Member 2011-2012
♦ TCCAP: Commendation- Divisioo Director Award, 2011
♦ Bethlehem Gtwen's Advisory Committee on Recyciing 2007-2010
♦ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2015-atfTeni
♦ Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/SwcctJammSwingBandJaaa Vocalist 1997-omvtJ
♦ Member. United States Figure Skating Assodation/Intccnational Skating Institute affmi rtMee 1993



Randall S . Pil o tte

Summary

AccountingpiofessionaJ with ova 29 yearsof oxperionce. of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies mclude.

Financial Statements Accounts Payables Inventory
p-vroU Bank ReconcUiations Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Bunting Cash How Management Audits Forecasting

EXPERIENCE

06/20l3-Prcsent
TRl.mUNTY COMMlJNnY ACTinN PROGRAM. INC.. Berlin. NH

^A?toscly ̂ S^CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify pcrfonnance ̂ ats for (he Agency and tom^tainSr.uonit„;performasce.gain^ ^als. Plan, direet, cooriinam, nnplement and evaluate the
fmancialmanagcmentsystcinsandactiviticsofthe Agency With a budget of J18M.

Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accountmg records for the Agency and outside

.  As^a orthe senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance
• ̂ 'pwes^ro^m and a^^udgcts in conjunction with the CEO and Duectors. Plan, duect.

coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tn-County CAPs division.
.  Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the dqiartmcnt; recommend piomotions and salary

. ̂  to rapervisioo and directian for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that aU mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-Coimty CAP's facflities. Creation of five-year capital plaa ,

. Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated
with each property.

•  Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Fiscal Director/Interim CFO (2016-2017) j .„»o
• Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts

payable, accounts receivable^ cash receipts and fixed assets.
.  Prepare and supervise the production of financial stotements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense

D^nnrts and Cost Summaries on a mondily and annual basis.
. Maintaiii piopa accouuliiig couttols on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenue reporting and expensetracking to support periodic monitoring's by fundcrs and auditors.
•  Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analyzed and reconciled
•  Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus bud^.
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing

departmental goals.
•  Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
•  Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accoundiig Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME;



KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC ifA/a Blue Seal Feeds. Inc.). Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010
Assistant ControDer (200S-2010)

•  Ensured an accurateaud timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the prepaialion of a consolidated a^
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores wim
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, accountanalysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate joum a! cntnes, mventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

• Oversaw all aspects ofproprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W28, and supervision ot
payroll clerk. . . •

•  Interfaced wi& 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audiu.
•  Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.
• Oversaw month-end accruals.

• Assisted and responded to auditors' requests on annual audit
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Conironer's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accoimting fimction.
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerics on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payabte. timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel rcimbunemcnts, and standard accountmg practices.

Accountont/PayroU Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TET ECOM INC.. Concoid. NH 05/1987-03/1989
Associate Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science, Accounting, Frankun Pierce Collie. Concord, NH



Brenda Gagne

Chief Program Officer
Tri Connty Community Action Program Inc.

ovOT^t'oTthe day to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAP'S Transit, Guardianship and
Energy Assistance Programs.

Experience:

Tri County Community Action Program, Inc.
6/30/2020 - Present
Department Head, Economic Supports
6/5/2022 Chief Programs OffKcr

Tri County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St
Berlin NB 03570
5/2017-6/30/2020

Director of Transportation

oSois and administrative functions of a social service transportation program serving Coos,
Northern Grafton and Carroll Counties.

Tri-County CAP, Inc.
Tri County Transit
31 Pleasant St
Berlin NH 03570
7/2004-5/2017

Operations Manager

Responsibilities include;
♦Running the daily operations of a public transit and para transit scmcc.
♦Facility Management.
♦Gathering statistics
♦Qxiarterly reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.
♦Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT♦Weckty employee scheduling, staff management.
♦Creating procedure manuals
♦Grant writing
♦Budget preparation
♦Writing Warrant Articles
♦Drug & Alcohol Testing
♦Emergency Preparedness
Mountain Village ConstructioD
P.O. Box 96
Milan, N.R 03588
5/1995-1/2004
Accounts Manager/Office Manager
Responsibilities included;
♦Customer service.
♦Accounting using Quick Books Pro.



♦Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
♦Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices.
♦Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
♦Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
♦Data Entry.
♦Phone communications and genoal secretarial duties.
Mflan Parks and Recreation Dept
P.O. Box 300
MilaD, N.H. 035S8
6/1997-3/2002
Parks and Recreation Director
Responsibilities included; t. j j u r .v
♦Directed and implemented sports and recreational programs for youth and adults for tnc
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dummcr.

•Development of new programs and year round activities.
•Producing yearly budgets. .
•Equipment and materials purchasing.
•Organizmg and si^crvising a large Volunteer staff.
•Working with the public to create new programs.
•CoordinatiDg with the Milan Village School on athletic and after school programs.
•Applying for Federal and State Grants.
EducatiOD:

• Graduate Gorfaam High School
Goiham NH

• Granite State College
Emergency Management

•  Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration

NiroOT Courses . ,., -
Fundamentab of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial ManagcmCTt Co^Basics of Facilities Management Senrinar (Facility Maintenance Plan), Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Workshop, Emergency Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conferciice on Statewide
Emergency Preparedness, Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems.
Certified Training and Safety Reviewer
Community Transportation Association of America .
June 2009
Certified Safety and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of Amenca
10/2010

Tri Stale Transit Conference
9/2007,10/2008, 10/2010, 9/2011, 9/2013, 9/2014, 9/2016, 9/2017
Grant Writ ing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical College
Berlin NH 10/2005



Gerald F. Mllliken, Jr.

pacod onvtronrndnL

Firpartomsa:

BerBn,NH
7-1-2020 to pmnnt

□Mkin and Operaflomd fliddanoe of Woathenzauon FadKes
SSSSSSar.»^»«
efrocflvonMO.

Beriln, NH
4-1-19to 0^1-2020

Provtdo leafcreh^) aid ovorafeht to procmn'B operaltorw. budgets and reporthg; -

Pr09»n

sassMHSSSr" •"•'sssrr^saassssssr"'



MorthamDtpreaaErtwy.has.

jsasr,£»'SJSis^
sctMfes. ..

MalntBlned aS roconis and pioducgd ryorts.^Executed daDy operaltona of restaurant managOTenL

PrmoeiUan^ <taiy cpmOon o
procedures
resoifoas

to vartous phasee of prtdecm.

BOErterpfte#,lnfc
PwaWanii Oaoort/Managor

S^to neflotJat©
XS^abordhatea \n\dKriSty^m^reotM^probbtna
Demcffblrotfid effective presertawn ddb.



Education:

Concord

Associates Degree In Electronic Technology 1S86
Theory

LRCC Lectinia
Etectricai Systems InstsBation & Mahtenence,
Requ&ed for Journeymen etectrfcal testino end State
Licenses.

AddltJonal IralnfRg;

8 CUEtraWng couree for Grant WTttlng for norv profits. To enhance my position on the
boardof atChfldrenUnflmJted.lnc. ,
Successfully compWed GE-epresllgfous "SIX SIGMA" managemem course in2001
WMie Employed with
HalfiekMleynoWsElectrteen lES. he. Company Phoentx.AZ.
Successfully completed tralnij« courses and eemtnere for,lead ssfework practices,
ast)6stDsawafaneea.OSHA30, CPf^electilcalcodat^dates.
Successfufy completed Business management desses h AZ
Duringthe 1095-2001. - a >-.
SucMssfuHy completed trefnlng and tesBng to be a NH State cartffled Energy Audaor
In200e.

Community:

Board member Children IWImaed, Inc.. Conwey NhCNorv Profr
Board member Berlin RevHalizetlon Commttteo. Beriln NH "Non- ProflT
Past member ofthe advisory board and codosigner for Ihe Myotonte Dystrophy
Founditona firstarebstte.
Previous owrw^ and Yvebmaster for the Myotonte OyaWphy Informaflon wetwte.

License:

Hekisn ElectricalJoumsymanScertse NH
Held en ElactrloalCGntrBCtor License AZ

References: AvaOabie upon reediest



Dennis Downs

Professional SuNmARV

Skilled Manager. Quality Control Inspector, & Energy Auditor with over 30 years of experience in the Energy
Conservation industry.

Self-motivated

Strong verbal communication
Mechanically Inclined

Accustomed to working in all weather conditions
Eager to team new skills

Goal oriented, fast learner

Make safety a priority.
Committed to making the client happy

Project Management Skills

WORK History

Weatherization Program Director- 7/8/2024 to Current
Tri-County CAP - 30 Exchange St Berlin NH 03570

WeatherizatioD Production Supervisor, 04/2019 to 7/8/2024
Tri-County CAP - 30 Exchange St Berlin NH 03570

Weatherization Energy Auditor, 09/1993 to 04/2019
Tri-County CAP - 30 Exchange St Berlin NH 03570

EDUCATION

Associate of Applied Science: Electrical Construction. 1992
NH Vocational Technical College - Prescott Hill, Laconia, NH 03246

CERTIFICATIONS

•  BPI Quality Control Inspector
•  Lead Safe Renovator

•  OSHA 30

BPI Energy Auditor
CPR/First Aid

Valid Drivers License



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSIONER. \ TDD Access; Relay NH
Jared S. Chicolne ' I ̂  f 1-800.735.2964

Tel. (603)271-3670
OEPinY COMMISSIONER
Christopher J. Elkrra. Jr. FAX f4o. 271-1526

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord. N.H. 03301-2429

June 12,2024

VWbsite:

www.energy.rth.gov

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energ>' (Department) to amend a SOLE SOURCE contract
with Tri-County Communit>' Action Program, Inc., Berlin, NH, Vendor #177195, by extending the
expiration date from June 30, 2024, to June 30,2025, for the Weatherization Assistance Program's
Sustainable Energy Resources for Consumers grant, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval. The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on January 31,
2024, Item #66. No additional funding is requested. 100% Federal Funds.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department ofEnerg>''s (USDOE) grant guidance (10
CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the W AP due to their non-profit
status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP, and their historical
performance delivering W AP.

The Department applied for and received this competilively awarded Sustainable Energy Resources for
Consumers (SERC) grant, funded through the USDOE's Weatherization Assistance Program. Per the
Department's application and the terms of this award, funds will be used to install heat pump space
heating systems in manufactured homes that currently use kerosene as their primary heating source,
owned by low-income weatherization-eligible clients, to alleviate the issues associated with kerosene
supplies. The Department estimates that this SERC grant award will contribute to the installation of heat
pumps in approximately 8 homes in the Tri-County Communit)' Action territory, which consists of
Carrol, Coos, and Grafton Counties.

The Department is requesting this extension to allow for the SERC funds to be fully spent out in PY24.

In the event Federal Funds arc no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Respectfully submitted.

Oared Chicoinc

Commissioner



CONTRACT AMENDMENT

Thij Amcndmenl is between the Stale of New Ha^shirc, acting by and through the New
Hampshire Department of Energy (Department), 21 S. Froit Street, Sic. 10, Concord. NH 03301,
(hereinafter referred to as State) and Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc., (hereinafter
referred to as the Contractor), collectively referred to as (the Parties).

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a contract, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on January 31. 2024, Item #66 (hereinafter referred to as the Contract);

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to extend and amend the Contract as provided in this
Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Contract allows for amendments by an instrument in writing executed
by both Panics;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract, and set forth herein, the Parties hereto do hereby agree as follows;

\

^ • Amendment and Modification of Contract. The Contract is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Section 1.7, Completion Date, P-37/G-1 of the existing Contract/Grant
Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following: June 30, 2025.

B) Exhibit B; Amend Paragraph 2, deleting Program Year 2023 (PVZS) in the
first sentence and the date of June 30, 2024 in both the first and second
sentence, and inserting in place thereof Program Year 2024 (PY24) and
the date June 30,2025 in both the first and second sentence.

C) Exhibit B; Amend Paragraph 4. deleting PY23 in the first sentence and
fnserting in place thereof PY24.

D) Exhibit B: Amend Paragraph 6, deleting PY23 in the third sentence and
inserting in place thereof PY24.

E) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to "upon Governor
and Council approval through June 30,2025."

F) Exhibit E: Amend period covered by this cctrification to "From data of
approval by the NH Governor and Executive Council to through June 30
2025."

2. Effccttvc Date of Amendment: This Amendment shall take effect upon
Governor and Executive Council approval.

Award No. DE.££0009916: Federal AwardDate: 07/01/2022 Coniraeiorlnhiib
CFOANo.81.042 Date JStlai.
Tri«CountiyCommim(tyActk)nPrognm.Inc.



3- Conrinuance of Contrace. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in
full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract
as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have set thisir hands on the dates written below.

Tii-County Com^olty Actfon Program. Inc.

By: Date:

Jeanne RobiuM, Chief Executive Officer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Department of Energy

JaJM S. Chicoine, Commissioner
Date: 5 /a I

Approval by the Attorney Generars Office (Form, Substance and Execution)

Ckf^/Stophct' G. Mtih Date; 5/13/2024
int Name ind Title ChrislophPrint islopher G. Aslin, Senior Assistant Attorney General

Approval by the Governor and Execudve Council

JUN ^ 2 202^
G&C Meeting Date:

SECRETA^ state

C&C Item 50"

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Federal Award Date; 07/01/2022
CFDA No. 81.042

Tri-County Cooununity Action Program. Inc.

Contractor lohb Is

Date oiaiiiaK
.  PBgc2of2



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. Oovid M. Scanlar. Secreian- of Stoic of the Stoic ofNcw Hompihire. do hereby ccnify ihat TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRI-COl/NTY CAP) is o Nc*v Hampshire Nonproili Corporadon registered to transact business irt

New Hampshire on May 18.1965. 1 further ccrtily' that oil fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofllce have

been received and is in good standing as far as this olTice is concerned.

Business ID; 63020

Certincste Number; 0006652662

V

o

%a:

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be aHlved

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this Isi day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Seanlan

Secreiar\' of State



CERTIFICATE CP AUTHORfTY

1 . Sandy Atentn hfifrty c«rtffy thai;
(Name of the elected,Officer, of the Corporailon/LLC; cannot l>e contract signatory)

1.1 am a duty elected Board Chair of TrhCounty Community Action Program, lix. .
(CorporailorVLLC Name)

2. The foOm^ng is a Itm cm of a^te taken at a meetir>Q of the Board of Oirectors/sharehotdere. duly caned and
on 2qSS . at which a quorum of the Dlredora/shsrehofders were present arxf voting.

(Oate)

VOTED: That ̂ Jeartne Robfllard, CEO arxl or Randall Pilotte, CFO__^_ (may list more than one persoo)
(Name and Title of Contract Sigrialory)

is duly authofiaed on behalf of Trl-Counly Community Aclioo Program. Inc. to enter into cor^uacte or aoreomenta •
with the State

.  (Name of CorporatiorV LLC)

of New Hampshire and eny of its agendas dr departments end further is authorized to execute any and eii
documents, agreements and other Insl/unwds, and eny amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may'in his/her judgment be destrade or necessary to effect (he purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify thai said vote haa not been amended or repeaied and remains in full force and effect as of the
data of the contract/contract amendment to which this certtficate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (JO) days from the dale of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It la understood that the Slate of
New Hampshire will rely on this certlfteate as evidence that the person(8) flsted above currently occupy the.
posltjon(s) Indicated and that they frave frjii authority to bind (he corporation. To the extent that (here are eny
limits on (he authority of any listed Individua) to Nnd the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Signature of Electsp Officer V
Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title: B<^ Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



/yrONpF CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATI (MUOOrVYYV)

01/03/2024

THIS CCRTlflCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY ANO CONFERS NO RJCKTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLOER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEKO OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTfTVlTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING tNSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLOER.

IMPORTANT: If th« ctrlincat* holMr t* tn ADDITIONAL INSURED, th* pc(lcy(lM) must h«v« ADDITIONAL INSURED provMpnt or bo *ndora*d,>
If SUBROGATION IS WAfVEO. tufiiocl to th* tireto and condlUon* of (ho pdl^, ctrtaln pollcio* may roguiro an andorsomonL A atatamont en
this cortlflcat* does not confar rights le the ctrtlflcsto holder In Oau of such endors*m*nt(a).

Ffiooucea

Cn}M Inwrsnco-Msncheater

ItOOEImSlrMI

uanenetia/ hh 03i0t

nSIS-' Susan Suovan
fifX,.. («03)«6J021. (»0a)»«-O3>
^1^,. mancrLcensOcmuagency.com

MSueetunArrcnomo covciuoe •uuca

iFSuMKA; PhOedeiphia indemnity Ins Co IBOSB

MSLBteO

Trt-Couny Community /Mticn Progrem, Inc

30 ewNange Straet

Bcdin KH 03B70

MSUKtRt; Granite State HeaSh Cere end Human Servieee Setf-
MSURteC:

MtuMRD:

wsuaeee:

wauMRF:

COVERAGES CERTlFtCATE NUMBER: a-2*An2V?4WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS ts TO CERTIFY THAT THg POUClES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE MEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERlOO
INDICATED. NOTWITKSTANOINC ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTFICATE MAT BE ISSUED OR MAT PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES OESCRIBEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS ANO COIOITIONS OF SUCH POUClES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE MEN REDUCED BY RMD CLAIMS.

ISWl
TTFtOF MSURAMCI AOUCTMUHSENrmrm

CONMBRCUL OCMBRAL UAMJTV

OAWa-MMN I ̂  OCCUR

CCNLAOCftCOATE UMT APRJCS PCft

LOCFQUCV

OI>CR:

□ 3S □

PtlPK2S719At 07/01/2033 07 A1/2034
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AUTOS ONLY

schsoulco
AUTOS
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aTOS
"AtureKOAKCAS COMFOIAIION
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(MaMMNVblMMI

Ot»CWFItONOFOACWATPMS»<»»

B HCKS20240000S79 (34.) NN OtA)l/2024 01/01/202S (.lCaChacCioCnt , 1.000.0CO

e.l. dSCASC. EA ih^orrEE 1.000.000

ex. OttASE • FOUCY U»AT } 1.000.000

oescAimONof opuutioms/LOCAnoAS/vonctes iacoro ioi. a aamtu scamvi*. »t m wcau dmot* tpat* n

Ra(«r» poBcy lor iicMslonA/Y €RBer**fli«nts And tpscl*) provteions.

NH Ocpanmem of Energy
21 SouOiFniiSL. Sta. 10

Concord NH 03301

I

SHDULO ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRIMO POUClES BE CANCELLED MFORE
THE EXPIfUnON DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WAL BE DELIVEReD M
ACCOftOANCE WITH THE POLICY PftOVlBONS.

AUTHOIWeO RCFMSEMTATIve

ACORD 25 (2010/03)

ei08S-2019ACOROCOftPOIUT1ON. AO right* m«rv*d.

Th* ACORO n*m« tnd logo v« r«g>*t*f«d mtrk* of ACORO



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

^  TOOAcc«s:Re..yHHJv«3 S. Chiceine

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER 2"-3670
Cftrtttoph«J,Elh».Jf. ^6S2S^ fAX NO. 271.1528

Website;

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY wwertefoy nh pov
21 S Fruil SI. Suite 10

Conco/d.NH 03301-2429

January 31, 2024

His ExMllency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. Ne>v Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter ir«o a SOLE
SOURCE contract with Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.. Vendor #177195. Berlin.
NH, in the amount of $232,175 for the federal Wealherization Assistance Program (WAP)
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30,2024. 100% Federal
Funds.

Funds are available in the accounting unit Low Income Weatherization as follows:

FY-2024

02.52-52-520510-33560000-074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $232,175

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) grant
guidance (10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the WAP due
to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for WAP. and
their historical performance delivering WAP. In.addition, the terms of this competitively ■
awarded grant require the Department !o contract with Tri-County Community Action Progr^,
Inc. for this award.

The Department applied for and received this competitively awarded Sustainable Energy
Resources for Consumers (SERC) gram, funded through the USDOE's WAP. Per the
Department's application and the terms of this award, funds will be used to install heat pump
space heating systems in manufactured homes that currently use kerosene as their primary
heating source, owned by low-lncomc wcatherizaiion-eligible clients, to alleviate the issues
associated with kerosene supplies. The Department estimates that this SERC grant award will
contribute to the installation of heat pumps in approximately eight homes in the Tri-County
Community Action lerrilory. which consists of Carrol, Coos, end Grafton Counties.



Hb Excellency. Governor Chrtaopher T. Sununu
end (he NonorBbIc Council

Juuary3l.2024
Pigelor:

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available. General Funds will not be requested lo
support this contract.

Lespectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (vtntcm 2/230023)

tlaiiSE 7)tU tpttnem end til ef in iitKhmenu dnO beceme public, upon cubmntioa lo ODvcmer
Eeeeuttn Cousdl for ipprevti Any mfenniriee ihei U pnveic, conndcntiil or propncteyoBni
be eki^ identiAcd lo dw •fcney tnd a|rccd to in wriUni prior le ii|nin| (b« contno.

ACfUEMCMT
Tb« Suic ofHcw HtmpibirttndibeCMtnctsrbertby mututlly tfiTC la foltowi;

CCNCaAL PROVISICWS

1.1 Saw A|<s»ey Name

Drpaitncnt ef Eaofy

1.2 Suu Agency AdOreu

2) S. FfUir St.. Sic. 10. Concord. NH 03101

IJ CoRtrocier N«m«

Tri'Coueiy Community Action Piofitca, Inc.

1.4 Conoidor Addrcu

30 Excbtnge Street, Berlin. NH 03570

1.5 Coetroeior Phone

Number

(603) 753-700I

1.6 Account Urdc end CUu

Q2.S2.52-5205IO>))5iOOOO.
!  074.500517

1.7 Cempkiron Dole

htai 30,2024

I.I Prise LimiteiloA

M32.I73

Kirk Stone. Westhenatbo ta|mffl Minifcr
1.10 Suu AfCBcy Telephone Nuenbo
(603) 271.1670

l.ll CostncterSifMttrr 1.12 Ntfflc end Title of ConTneiorSigBttory

Taone RobillerdL Bioeuiive Oircctor

I.IJ Stt A|ency Steeim ' \ 1 1.14 Nime end Title of Stete Agency Signetory

Jarcd S..Ckico{nc. Cemniiuibrter

1.15 tbe N-H. Depcnincnt ofAdminifOitien, Wwiiiw ef PenoaocI Ofofipikcbtt)

.pT- Oiteetar. Ob:

. 1. Approvol by the (f«nh. StfttUnre end Eircution) (l/appfliatltj

Br. On. 1/16/2024

1.17 Approviihg^^omnoroadEieeuitvf Covodi (ffcppfktbfi) ij.

titf >SECRE^^'Y"0f STATE

AwtrdNo.OeEE00O9916
CFDANa 11.94)

Tii^ountjr Ceoummity Action No$nffl, lac.

^P>37Fenn
InrtxMU-SjfOut aianfa'S



1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. Th« Sine of New hereof, and ihill be the only end the complete cotnpcnution to the
Hampshire, iciiag through ihe a|ency identified in blocV l.i Coniractor for the Services.
(-Sine"), engafeicotyrictoridentined in block 1.3 (-Coniraclof-) 5.3 The Siaie reserves the righi to offset from any an^u
to perform, and the ConirKtor shall perform, the work or sale of otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
|Oods, or Iwh. Identified and more paniculaHy described in^he liquidated amounts required or permiticd by N.M. RSA 80:7
attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporircd herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwiihstandrng any provision of this Agreement to the
conirary. arsd subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if applicxble,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become efTeciive on the date the Covemcr and Executive CourKil

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall bceoma effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block I.I)
("EfTective Date").
3.3 If the Contracrorcommences the Services prior to Ihe Elective

through RSA I0:7< or any other provision of law.
S.4 The State's iiabillty under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages rtoi to exceed the total fees paid. The Coatractor
agrees that it has an ad^uate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State arsd hereby waives any right to specific
peifonr^e or other equiuble remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITV.

'6.1 In connection with the performance of the Service*, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statuiea, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal
auihoriiici which impose any obligation or duty upon (he

Date, all Services performed by . (he Contractor prior to (he Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rrghn and equal
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor, employmenl opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and in the event that this Agreement docs not become effeciive, the
Stale shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation.-any obligation lo pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Servieu performed.
3.3 Contractor must compleie all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

and Civility in the Workplace. Executive order 3020-01. ■ In
sddiiioa. If this Agreement Is fbnded In any pan by monies of the
United Sutes, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations artd |uidelin<s u the State or the IfnUed States issue to
impkmcni these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable imellcciuil property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not

Notwiihsuading any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, discriminate against employeet or applicants for employment
all obligations ofihe State hereunder. including, without limitation, because of age, sex, sexual orientation, rKe. color, marital status,
the continuance of paymenta hereunder, are contingent upon the physical or mental disabtliiy, religious creed, nitional origin,
avail»bilrtyandcoo(iDuedippropriationoff\tnds.tnnoevenishalI gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such action to prevent such dtscriminaiion, unless exempt by naie or
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any lubcontnctors
tenoinatiooofappropriaiedhsndsbyanysuteorfederallegislaiive comply with these nondiscrimtnation requirements,
or executive action that reduces, eliminites or otherwise modiHes 6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contraaor or its
the appropriation or aviilabiliiy of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or inpart.
(he Slate ihall have the right to withhold payment until such ̂ nds
become availible, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
lerminaie the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice oftuchreduciioQ or termination. The
Sttte shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in (hat Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and tenns of payment
are identified aid more ptrttculirly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.3 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpeaed circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments auihorued. or actuaily made
hereunder, exceed (he Price Limitation lei forth in block 1.8. lire

payment by the Slate of the conirKt price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to-the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Conirteior in the performance
Award No. DE-EE0009916
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represenutives In connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have (he purpose or elTect .of public or commefcial
bribery, or accepunce of or acquiescence in extonion. kickbacJu,
or other unlawRil or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the Suie or United States
access to any of the Conuacior's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with (his Agreement and
si) rules, regulaiioni and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and corsdiiions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL •

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necesttsy to perform (he Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Conoacting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be Ihe Stale's point of contact pertainiog to this
Agreement.

lnitialsTj:j)Le<£^uS^^
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" 8. EVE.VT OF OEFAl/LT/REMEOIES.
8.1 Any one or more of «hc following acu or omissions of «h<
ContracKir shall consiituie an eweni of default hereunda fEvem
ofDefaull");
8.1.1 failore «o perform ihe Services latlsfaciorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure lo submn any report required hereunder; and'nr

10.2 Ai; daia and any Properly which has been received from the
State. 01 purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreerneni. shall be the property of the Slate, and shall be returned
lo the State upon dertund or upon terminution of thb AgrecrrKni
for any reason.
10.3 ni.scln$urc of daia. inforniatlGn and other records shall be

a I 1 f I * — ' •....w.w.-Mii. ui uaiu. iniitiiiiauan ana otner records snali be8 _l .3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condi.ion of governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
«  t r , r^'*cIosurcrcquireipriorwr|iientpprovaloftheStatf.8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, (he Stare may
take anyone, or more, or all. of the following actions: II. CONTRAatlK'S RELATJON TO THE STATE. In the

h"" notice ̂ ciiymg the Evcnr of performance of this Agreement the Contiaclor is in all rcspccii anDefault and requiring il lo be rerncdicd wiih.n. m ihe absence af» independent coniractor. and is neither an agent nor an employee of
Of)"l«ndar days the Stale. Neither the Contractor no, any of its officers eLoyecsfrom Ihe date of the nonce; and if the Event of Default is not limely agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive

cured, te/minate this Agreentem.ef/ecnvciwo (2) calendar days any benefits, worlten- compensation or other emoluments
afier givmg the Controclor nonce of termination; provided by the State to iw emploveei
8.2.2 give the Coniractor a written notice specify-ing ihe Fveni of
Defauli and suspending all payments to be made under this 12. ASblCNMENT/UELECATlON/SUBCONTRACTS

'^'ContractnrshallprovidethcSiatewrii.ennoticeaileastfiftrenWd othcrwiie accrue to the Coniractor during the penod (ron. (IS) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation or
^e date ofiueh notice unid such time as the State dctcnn.nex that ruhci irinHcr of any interest in this Agreement. No such
the Contractor has cured the Event of Defauli shall never be paid assignmcni. dclcgafion. or other transfa shall be cffeciivc withoui
to the Contractor; 3,^^^
r.J give Ihe Conractor a written notice ̂ ecifyingthe Event of 12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12. a Change of Control shall
Oefiultandseioffigainst anyorhcT obligations ihcSioiemayow-c constitute asiignmcm. -Change of Control" mcani (a) mergerto the C^oniractor any damages the .State suffers by reason of .any consolidation, or a transaction or series of related tr.nsacionT in
FvcriofDefauh.aod or *h«ch a third party, together with its affiliaics. becomes.the direct
r^f h'7 specifying ihe Event of or indirect owner of fifty perccni (SOV.) or more of the votiniDefauli. treii the Agreement as breached, terminate ilie Agrecnicnl shares or similar equity infcreirs. or combined voting power of the

Cand pursue any of its remedies ai law or in equit onirtciof. Of (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
ihc Coniraciui.

12. J None of the Services shall be subcontracted by ihc C'onlractot
without prior wiinen notice andconseni of the .State.
12.4 The State is entitled tu cufiies of all subconiracis and
assignment agreemtnis and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in i subcontract or an assignmcni agreement to which it
u not a party.

13. I.NDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,.

y, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Nofwiihsiandiftg paragraph 8, the State may. at its sole
discretion, (crminaie the Agreement tor anyrc8So^ in whole or in
pan. by ihirt)* (30) calendar days wriitcn noiice tu the Contractor
thai the State is exercising its option to terminaie the Agreement.
9.2 In ihe event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Coniractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Conifaciint Officer

,  . , ... voiui«ior snail inoemniry,not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of defend, and hold harmless the .^late, its officers, and employee
tcrminaiion. a report C TcrtniruttonRepon'-) describing in detail from and against all actions, claims, damages demands
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and judgments, fines, liahilities. losses, and other expenses includinu"
tncluding the date of rcrminaiion. In addition, at the State's withoui limiuiion. reasonable atiomevi' lees, arising out of or'
diKrction, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (13) calendur diys relating to this Agrccmemdircciiyor indirectly arising from death
of notice of early termination, develop artd submit to the .State 1 personal mjuiy, property damage, intellectual properly

infringement, nr other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or witlftil misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incuaed by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to consiiiuie a waiver of the State's
sovereign immunity, which immunity Is hereby reserved lo the
Sine. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall sur\-ive the termination
of this Agreement.

transition plan for Services under the A|recmcni.

10. FROPF.RTV OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Properly" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or devclt^d by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports, files,
formulae, luneys. maps, cham. sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drau-ihgs. analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
leiieri. memoranda, papers, and documents, all wheihci finished or
unfinished.

Award No. DF F.E00099lf
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14.1.VSUfUNCe.

14.1 The Contriclof ihall, iu lole CKpensc. obtain and
conlinvouily nuinUin in force, and thall rrqutre any tubconiractor
or aMignee lo obtain and mainUm in force, (he following
insurance: • '

14. I.I commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounu ofnni lets than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or exccu;
and

14.1.2 special cause oflou coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagriph 10.2.herein, in an amount not less than
10% of the whole replacemenl value of (he Property.
14.2 lite polkiet described in subparagreph [4.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and enderscmcnu approved tor use in the Slate of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the Slate of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
idcniiried in block 1.9. or any luccesscr. a cenincateft) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting OfTicer. or any successor, the Contractoi
shall provide ccrtifkaiefs) of insurance for all rencwal(s) of
insurance required uttder this Agreement. The cenificaiefs) of
insurance and atry renewals thereof shall be aaKhed and are
incorporated herein by rcferexe.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

IS. I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrenu that the Coniractoe is iit corrtpltance with or eiempt from,
the rcquircmenti of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workfrt'
Cooipe/iror/on ").
15.2 To the extent the Conncior is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compcnsatiort in connection with aclivitiei which the
person propuses to undertake pursuant to (his Agfeement. The
Contractoi shall (Uroish the Contracting OfTtcer identiried in block
1.9, Of any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
maniscr described in N.H. RSA chapter 28 l-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be anached and are irrcorporaied
herein by reference. The Sine shall not be resporuible for payment
of any Workers' Compenuiion premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compenuiion taws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

2

11. AMEND.MENT. This Agrtoneni may be amertded, waived or
discharged only by an instrument In writing signed by the parlies
hereto and only after approval of such amcndnteni, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Cotmcil of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted tr>d corutrued
in accordance with the laws of (he .State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agrcerrtcnl is the wording chosen by (he
panics to express their mutual inteni. atKl no rule of conitiuciien
shall he applied against or in favor of any pany.
19.2 Any actions arising oui of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to bindmg
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Menimack County Superior Coun of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the everit ofaconllici between
the itrrrn of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any aiiachfrtenis thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in" EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD Parties. This Agreement Is being cnicrcd into for
(he sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout (he Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain; modify, amplify or aid in the
interpreuiion, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agree mem.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modi^ing
provisions set forth in the iiiached EXHIRIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

4. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and aflilittes, thai), it its own cost and expense, execute any
addiiionai documents and uke such ftirthcr actions u may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

16. Waiver OFBREACH. A Sute'i failureioenforce its rights 25. SEVERABIUTV. In the event any of the provisions of this
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement Agreement are held by a coun of competent jurisdiction to be
shall rroi act as s waiver of the right of the Slate to later enforce any . contrary to any stale or federal law. the remaining provisions of
such righii or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach. this Agreement will remain in full force and efTcct.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by i party hereto to the other pany shall 26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemerit. which may be
be deemed io have been duly delivered us given at the lime uf executed in a number of counterparts, ettch of which shall be
milling by cenified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Slates Post deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
Office addreised to the parties at the aiddresses given in blocks 1.2 understanding betwceii the parties, and supersedes all prior
and 1.4, herein. igrccments and unJcrsundings with respect to the tubjecl maner

hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 20085 amended (Uniform Adminislralivc Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February i, 2002
(Weatberization Assistance Program), the New Hampshire Weatberization Assistance
Program State Plan, Weatherization Assistance Program Policies and Procedures, and
Field Ouide are all considered legoily binding and enforceable documents under this
contract. The NH Department of Energ)' (Department) reserves the right to use any legal
remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of
fimdi, suspension of agency personnel, disbanneot of agency persoruiel, disbaxroeol of
ageccies arnl/or subcontractors from present or future contracts, and such other legal
remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New Hampshire Department of Justice
in the enforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the Weatherization Assistance
Prognun.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contnctor's fiscal year in accordance with 2
CFR 200, Subpart F • Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of
revenues and expenditures by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the
Coatractor's fiscal year. The Contractor ihall utilize o compeutive biddii^ proccss to
choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

The audit repoit shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a
response to the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all
management letters written as a^result of the audit along with (he audit report shall be
forwarded to the Department within one month of the time of receipt by the Contractor
accompanied by an action plan, if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost.

3. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 6 of the general provisions:

"6.S All negotiated contracts (except those of $5.0(X) or less) awarded by the Subgrantee
shall allow the NH Department of Energy, the US DOE, the Comptroller General of (be
United Slates, or any duly authorized representatives, access to any books, documents,
papers, and records of the Subgrantee or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinent
to the Weatherization Assistance Program for the purpose of miaJcing audits,
examinations, excerpts and transcriptioo."

4. In paragraph 9 of the general provisions, the following senterKe shall be deleted: "The
form, subject matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be
identical to those of any Final Report described in EXHIBIT A."

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

Awvd No. DE-EE00099I6 /Bxhtbii.ABC
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-  6. * Progrim and financial records pcnaining to this contraci shall be retained by the
Contractor for three years ftom the date of submission ofthe fma) expenditure report or.
for awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date ofthe submission of the
quaneiiy or annual financial report, as stated in 2 CFR 200.334 • Retention
Requirements for Records.

7. This is not a Research and Development (R&D) award. The Department's indirect cost rate
is 10 percent.

.  8. KifV Stone, Wcaiherization Program Manager at the Department, has been designated
with the responsibility for overseeing this contnct.

9. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between
the parties that no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining
additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if authorized
under that law.

10. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are anached and signed:
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding
Lobbying; Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility
Mancn; Ccrtirication Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance;
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance
Nondiscrimination In Federally Assisted Programs; and Ccrtificalton Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.

11. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of
$2,000.00 for construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with
Copcland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 USC 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor
Regulations (29 CFR. Part 3). This Act provides that each contractor, subcontract or
subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the
construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to the Department.

12. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shaJl comply with al) provisions of 2 CFR 200Subpajt D
- Post Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on
financial procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpa/l F - Audit Requirements) arid property
management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property
Standards).

13. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimburscnrent requests
shall be submlned to the State within 60 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7).

14. In accordance with New Hampshire Executive Order No. 2023-05, boycotting Israel shall
be grounds for termination of the contract.
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EXHIBITS

SCOPE OF SERVICES

I. Tri-Counify Community Action Program, Inc., hereinafter "the Contractor," agrees to
■ install heat«piuDp driven space heatiog systems all additional ser\'iccs and other work
necessary to provide Wealherization Assistance Program (WAP) services to eligible low
income individtials In accordance with the regulations set forth by rhe.U. S. Depanmcot
of Energy in 10 CFR 440 dated February 1. 2002. and in 2 CFR 200 as amended, and tn
accordance with the provisions and proc^ures contained in the most recent New
Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, Policies and
Procedures Manual, Field Guide, and as otherwise administered by the Department.

Periodically the Department may issue Subgmntce Guidance (SG) and Subgrantee
Notices (SN) or other management and/or guidance clarifications os necessary. All such
changes shall be considered as incorporated into the NH Weaiherization Policies and
Procedures Manual and Field Guide. The Contractor agrees to alter the Program
procedures in accordance with a SG. SN or other iostruclioos.

The Contractor agrees to abide by changes in the KH Wealherization Assistance Program
as prepared by NHWAP and fuitber agrees to perform Weatherization Program services
in a manner that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efHciency
programs for low-income households in order to provide the best services for New
Hampshire's low-income households.

2. The coritract period, to be known as Program Year 2023 (Py23). will commence on upon
approval from New Hampshire Governor and Executive Council, and will have a
coiTipletioo date of iune 30, 2024. There is the potential to extend the contract if all the
funck are not expended by June 30, 2024, subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

I

3. Contractor must provide the Department with.a budget for the use of NHWAP SERC
funds before any reimbursement for weatherization woilc will be paid by the Department.

4. In PY23. Contractor agrees to complete heal pump installations on eight dwelling units
according to the standards outlined in the SERC Application submitted to and approved
by US DOE. The installationi will only be on eligible previously wcatherized units,
weatherized according to the most recent NH Wealherization Policies and Procedures
Manual and Field Guide.

5. Contractor will install heat pumps in all kerosene-fueled units where it is deemed
possible and if It is the preferred solution. The contractor will perform a duel fuel switch
if the existing kerosene system presents any health and safety concerns for the client,
and/or there is an option to provide an alternate backup fuel system.

AwirdNo.Dfi-EEOOOWM ./txliibii ABC
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6. In iccordancc with the US DOE'S "Qujiity Work Flan" (QWP) and the provisions of
Wettherizalion Program Notice (WPN) 15-4
hnp$://www.enerttv.i!Ov/ccrc/waD/downloads/wn)>-l5-4-aualitv-work-plan-rcQuiren)enl-
uudatel and as modified in WPN 22-4 AVcathcriratinn Procrum Notice 22-4: Oualilv
Work Plan Rcuuircmcnl Update I Dcnamncnf of Encruv). beginning April 1,2015,
Concraclor must have regular and reliable access to properly traiiKd and certified Quality
Control lrtspector(s), available as either staff or contractors, able to fully function to (bat
capacity. This contract provides funding for continued training and techoical assistance
sufficient to allow the Contractor to secure and maintain the skilled personnel necessary
to meet the requirements of WPN 15-4 and WPN 22-4.

7. All work performed under the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) in New
Hampshire, using federal money from any WAP program year, must meet the mmimum
specifications defined in the US Department of Energy's "Quality Work Plan" (QW?)
and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). Details vc presented in the
Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home Energy Upgrades referred to in US DOE
Weatherization Program Notice 15-4 and updated in Weatherization Program Notice 22-
4, as well as io the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program's Field Guide,
2021 Edition, which governs how WAP energy conservation measures (ECMs) are to be
implemented. The Contractor must ensure, and be able to documem for the Department,
that all staff and contractors wbo perform Weatherization work in PY23 are properly
trained and certified for (bat work and have been informed (hat their work must meet the
requirements of the SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and
reimbunement will not occur,
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of services, the New Hampshire Department of
Energy (Department) agrees to pay Tri-Countiy Community Action Program, Inc. in total, the
sum of:

S232.175.00 (which hereinafter is rcfened to as the "Cootracted Amount"), of which
S 18,825.00 may be expended for Administration,
$ 24,000.00 may be expended for Health & Safety measura,
S169,350.00(the balance), to be spent on wcatberization activities (Program Activity) and

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to the Department. Disbursement of the contracted
amount shall be nude in accordance with the proc^urcs established by the State and 2 CFR
200.305(b) on an.advance basis; limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in
accordance with the actual, immediate cash requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the
purpose of the program. The Contractor must make timely payments to (sub)cnntroctora in
accordance wrtb the contract provisions. Contractor shall submit a payment request to the
Department for each month of the contract period. Poyrecni requests from Cootiactor shall be
received at the Department no later than the 15*^ day of each month, or the first business day
following the 15*^ day v

Administrative costs are provided to cover a specified number of unit completioiis at mlaimal
standards. Administrative frmds may be pro*raied by the Department if production unit
completions do not meet expected production goals.

The Department may. as a function of its administrative oversight, rnodify contracted budget
amounts as necessary to ensure the cfTicieni operation of the KHWAP as long as these modified
expenditures do not exceed the Contracted Arnoont total as specified above.

All obligations of the Department, including the continuance of any payments, are contingent
upon the availability and continued appropriation of Federal funds for the services to be
pmvided.
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NEW HAMFSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor tUcntified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Proviiicns agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 515),-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIPrCAnON REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUlREMEfVTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DBFARIMEf^ OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ♦ CONTRACTORS
US department of EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This cenification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 3151 -3160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 19«8 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 eiseq.). The January 31. 1989, regulations were
amended and published as Part I! of the May 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681 -21691), and requirt
certificatioa by granted (ai>d by inferertce, sub-grantccs and sub-coninctots), prior to award, that (hey will
raainuin* drug-free workplace. Sectiun 3017.630(c) of the regulatioD provides that a grantee (and by-infevcncc,
tub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one ccrtificaiion to the Oepaiimcni in etch
federal fiscal ycar.in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federiJ fiscal year covered by the certification. .
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violsrioo of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or imnination of granu, or govemmcni wide suspension or debanocnt Cdntractors using (his foon
should send it to:

Kirk Stone, Wcalherizotion Assistance Manager, New Hampshire Department of Enagy
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies (hat it will or will continue to provide a dnig-frcc workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of s controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace
and Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for viobtion of such prohibition;

(b) Esrablishing to ongoing drug-free awareness program ro infonn employees about*

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The greotee's policy of tnainiaining a dnjg-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon CTDployees for drug abuse vtoiatioos occurriog

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in (he statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the pant, the employee will-

(t) Abide by the tcrrns of (he statement; and
(2) Notify (he employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such convkiion;

Award No. DE-EE0009916 EgJibii D thru H
CFDA No. 81.042 Initials .^^Ietal2bta3
Tri-Ceunry Coremusity Action Program, Inc. Page I of?



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREME?VTS
ALTERNATIVE 1 ■ FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, reoi'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US department OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(e) Notifying the agoncy in u-riting, within icn calendar days after receiving notice under
subpangraph (dX2) from an employee or nthcrwiae receiving actual notice of euch conviction.
Emplcym of convicted employees mu.et provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was worlung, unleu the Federal agency
his designated a centra) point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification Humberts) of each afTccicd grant;

(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of r^eiviog notice uoda '
subparagraph (dX2X ̂ 0) respect to any employee who is so convicied-

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such en employee, up to and including
termination, cotuisteni with the requireir^uofthe Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee loparticipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse aaistancc or
rehabilitalioD program ̂ proved for sucb purposes by a Federal, State, or local bcalth,
law eoforcemcQi, or other tpprt^iriaie agency;

(g) Making a good faith elTon to continue'to maintain a dnig-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b). (c). (d). (e), and (0

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for the paformancc of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Tri-Couniy Community Action Program, Inc.
30 Excbange Street, Berlin, KH 03570

Tri-Countv Commuttitv Action Proftram. .Iik^ Upon GAG afmroval throuch June 30 ItAA
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Cenificaiion

Name and Title of Authorized CotitifMtor Representative

mB
'Contractor Signature Date

Award No..DE-EE00099I6 Ejddbit D thru H j
CTDANo. 11.042 InitUU ^
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NEW HAMPSniHE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319'of Public Law 101 •12). Govcmmem wide Guidance for New Rcstriclionson Ijsbbying, and 31 ll.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees (o have the Contractorls rcpreseniatiyc, as idcntifed in Sections 1.1) and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following CenifKaiion:

rERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ♦ COPflRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF KDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE-CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Communiry Services Block Gram
Low'Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program
WeitberluiJen Assistance Program

Contract Period: Upon CAC approval to June 30.2024

The undersigned certiHes, to the best ofhis or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) Nu Federal appropriated fursds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or atieniptiog to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an olficer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member nf Congress in cooiKcticm
with the awarding of any Federal coniraci, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modificalion of ony
Federel contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub'grantee or sub*
contractor).

(2) If any Ivnds other, than Federal oppropriated hinds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or aitempiing to iofluence an ofdccr or employee of any agerKy, a Member of Congress, on
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congrcts in connection with (his
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific meniion sub-graniee or stib-
contractor), ihe undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form ILL. "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instrucliom, aciacbed and tdeniificd as Standard Exhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned sfaall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) end (hot ill sub-recipicnu shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This cenificaiion is a material reprtsenution of fact upon which reliaace was placed when this transaction was
mode or eotered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Tiile 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file die required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not mure than $100,000 for each such failure.

Tri-Coun(v Community Action Program. Inc.
Contractor Name

XTeaoiiSe. C i
Nome and Thl tattve.

eacn veCootrac

Award No. DE-EE00099I6

CFDA No. «I.(M2

Tri'County Community Aaion Frogram. Inc.

bke

Exhibit D thru B
lni»tal><(^ Dale

Page 3 of7



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contracior identjQed in Section 1.3 of the General Provision* egrets to comply with the provisions of
Eiccutive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Dcbtfraent, Suspension,
and Other Responaibitiry Mtiters, ar>d further agrees to have the Contracior's represenuiive, as identified in
Sections 1.1) and l.)2ofthcGencr8l Provisionscaccute the followingCetlification:

certification regarding debarment, suspension, and other
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

tmstmetians for Ctrtijicttioo

(0 By signing end submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certtftcaiion set out below.

(2) The iitability of a person to provide the certification required below will not neccsMrily resuli in denial of
panicipacioo in this covered tranuciion. If necessary, ibe prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why il cannot provide the cerrificalion. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Eoergy (Department) determination whether to enta into this transact ion.
However, faihirc of the proqrecUve primary participant to ftmaisb a calinoiion i»r an explanation shall
disqualify such penoo from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certificaiion ihlhis clause is a maierial repreientation offset upon which reliance was placed when the
Department determined to enter into this pansiaion If it is later determined that the prospective primary

.  participant koowiogly rendered an crrooeous certificatiotj, in addition to other remedies available to the
Feden) Oovenuncoi, the Dqtarlment may Icrminalc this tran.uction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary partidpant shall provide insncdiate written nwice to the Department agency to"
whom this proposal (concnd) is submitted if ai any time the prospective primary paitidpani leams that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of chartged circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered trartsaction,"
"partlcifMnl," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as used in Ihii clause, have the meanings set out in the Dcfinitioas and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The protective primary participant agrees by submiiiing this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with i
person who is dcbanrd, suspended, declared it^eligible. or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by the Department.

(7) The prospective primary porrictpaat fhrlber agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
tilled "Certification Regnrding Debarment. Suspctttion. Ineligibility and Volunttiy Exclusjon • Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by the Department, wiihotrt modification, in al] lower tier covered
transactions and io all solicitations for lower tier covered traosaclions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon i certification of a prospective participant in a lower lia
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded ftora the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the cerrification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frcquGicy by which it determines the eligibility of in principals. Each participant may, but is not required to.
check the Non-procuranetd List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records io order
to render in good faith the certificaiion required by thb clause. The knowledge and informttion of a
participant is not required to exceed that v^ich is nonnally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings. *

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participam in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered iransiction with a person who is suspeoded, debarred,
ineligible, or vohmtanly excluded fmcn participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, the Department may tc/minaie this ironsactjqn for cause or default.

Aw«d No. DE-EE00099I< o thm H
CFDA No. 81.042 Iniciab^CDate
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CERTinCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Ctnificttion Reiording Debarment. Susptasfan, and Other
Responsibility Matters»Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The procpective primtry paiiicip*nt cenifies lo ihe best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmcnt. declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preccdsog this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment reitdered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obiaining, ancmpting to obtain, or p^orming a public (Federal, Slate or local) transaction
or a contract under a public transaclion; violation of FedenU or Slate antitrust statutes or
commission of embcalemeni, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;

(c) are not presently ii^icted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Suie or l<Kal) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b)
of this certification;' and

(d) have not, within a ihree-ycar period preceding this application/proposal, had one or more public
traiuactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primacy participant is unable to certify to any of the sialemenis in this certification.
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

«

Ceniflcaioo Regarding Deborment, Suspension, Ineliglbility end
yoiuntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transacsions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)
I

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (comrKt), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 era Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief i^t it and its principals;

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded fiwn participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective Iowct Her participant is unable to certify lo any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach en explanadon to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Dcbarmrat. Suspension, Incligibility, and Voluntaiy Exclusioo • Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier covered transactions.

Tfi-Countv Communiiv Action Program Inc. _ _ _ ^ .
Contractor Name ' '

Name and Titl»«^£bntraetar Rt

c-.d',

live SignatureCont,

Award No. DE-EE0009916

CFOA No. 11.042

Tri-County Comimmiiy Action Program, Inc.

Date

E^ibit D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDA^ EXHIBIT G

CERHFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Comractor idcniiried in Section 1.3 of the General Proviilons agrees by signature of the Contractor's
reprucntaiivc as identified in Seeiioos I.l! and I.U of the General Provisioos. to execute the followiiui
certification.-

/  By signing and submitting this proposal (coniract) (h« ContoKiOf agrees to make reasonable efTorti to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of I WO.

Tri-Countv Community Action Protrant. Inc.
Contractor Name

Name aod Title of Cootractor RcprexcAstive

CoDtrictOT ive Date

Award No. DE-E£00099I6

CFDA No. 81.042

Th-Coonty Community Action Progrim, Inc.
Initials* Date
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NEW HAMPSHrKE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public L»i» 103-227, Pin C
ENXTRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Uw 103227, Pan C Environmeoial Tobacco Smoke, alto koown as ihe Pro Children AcJ of 1994, requires
that tmokiag not be permitred in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or cooiracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either direcUy or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guirantee.

The Uw does not apply to children's services providod in private rcsijUitces, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid fwids. and portions of Uciliiies used for inpaiieni dreg or alcohol trealmeni.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the impositioo of an adiDtnistrative compliance order oo the reipoasibie entity.

By signing and submitting this application the appliceni/eriniee cenifies that it will comply with the requirements
of the Act.

The apphcanl/grantec further agrees lhat it will require the language of this certification be included in any tub
awards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all Subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

Tri-Countv Community Action Program. Inc.

Contractor Name

Name and Title of Contractor Rcprcacniative

AContractor lyeStista Dale

Award No. OB-£E00099ld

CFDA No. 11.042

Tri-County Commuaity Action Program, toe.
Initia

ibii D thre H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

. STANDARD EXHIBIT I

■  VS. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS

0MB Burdca Dlicloiure Sutcaicot

Public rqwrting burden for this collection of informaiioB is esiimsied to aversgc J S minutes per response,
izKluding the lime for reviewing instruciioru, searching existing data sources, gsihesing and mamtaining the data
needed, end completing end reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this bunlen
estimate or any other a^)ect of this collection of infonnation. Including suggestions for reducing this bunlen, to
Office of lofonnetion Resources Management Policy. Plans, and Oversight. Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Psperworit Reduction Project (1910-0400), l).S. Department ofEncrgy (Department ofEncrgy),
1000 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington. DC 20S85; and to the Office of Management and Budget
(0MB). Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

Tri-Coontv Cotmnunllv Aetkm Program, Inc.. (Hereinaner called the "Contractor") HEREBY AOR.ERS to
comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L 88-352), Section 16 of the Tederal Energy
Administration Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorgani2ation Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-
438), Title IX of the'Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L.
94-482). Section'504 of the Rehnbilitition Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the A^ Discrimination Act of 1975
(Pub. L. 94-135). Title VIII ofthe Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 9<V284), the Department of Energy
Organization Act of 1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Ad of 1976, as amended,-
(Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Pan 1040. In accordance with the above laws and
regulations issued punuant thereto, the Contractor agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on
the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or diMbility, be excluded from panicipation in. be denied the
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which (he Contractor
receives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.

Ap^cabUity and Period of ObUgatioo
lo the case of my service, finaocial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Contractor by the Department ofEncrgy, this assurance
obligates (he Contractor for the period during which Federal assistance is extended! In .the case of any transfer of
such service. fmarKial aid, equipment, property, or strucnire, this assurance obl)gate.s the transferee for (he period
during which Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Contractor for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other eases, this
assurance obligates (he Contractor for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the
Contractor by the Department of Energy.

CreployiRent Pracrtcet
Wbae a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Contractor's
employment practices affcci the delivery of services in programs or activities resuliing from Federal assistance
extended by (be Department, the Contractor agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national
origin, sex. age, or disability, to its employment practices. Such employment practices tnay include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layofTor temtination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates uf pay,
training and pariicipation in upward mobility programs; or other iWis of compensation and use of facilities.

Subreclpicot Assurance

The Contractor shall require any Individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants,
or sub]e8.ses for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid. equipment, property, or structure to comply

AwatdNo. DE-EE0009916 Exhibit!
CFOA NO; 81.042 loitiatft^iLl^
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wilh l«wi ind regulations cited above. To ihia end, ibc fubrecipient shall be required to sign a writien assurance
form; howcva, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipicnt to ensure compliance if not relieved by the
coU^ion or submission of wrincn assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records

The Contractora^ees to compile and maintain infoitnaiioa pertaining to programs or aciiviiies developed as a
result of the Ccotractor'i receipt of Federal assistance from the Depanment of tnergy. Such InformatioQ shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (I) the manner in which services ore or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
dtscrimitution: (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color. oaiionaJ origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned tise of bilingual public contact employees scTvtng
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effoctive participation by beneficiaries unable to apeak or
understand English; (d) the location of exisiiog or proposed racililies connected with the prognra and related
Information ad^uate for detemuning whether the location has or will have (he effect of unocceisartly denying
access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrinunatioa; (5) ihe preteoi or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by (he Department' of tnergy to be relevant to Ibc
obligaiioo to assure compliance by recipienis with laws cited in (be first paragnph of this assurance.

The Contnctor agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and octiviiies
developed by the Contractor from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of Ihe Contractor (including Ihe physical planlj, buildiogs, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, aod other sources of iofoniution pertinent to the CooCmctor's compliance with the civil righia laws
shall be tnade available for inspection during normal business houn on rrquesi of an oflker or employee of the
Department of Energy specifinlly authorized to make such iaspecrionj. (nstructioAS in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in considcrailon of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
coatraai (excluding procurement contmcts). property, discounts or other Federal assisfance extended after the
date hereof, lo the Contractora by the Departmeot of Energy, including mitallmenf paymcnis on account after
such data of tf^licalion for Federal assistance which are a{^oved before such date. The Contractor recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will bo extended in reliance upon the representations and agreemenU
made ia This assurance, and that Ihe United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance b binding on the Contractor, the cuccesson, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
person(s) whose signatures appear below and who are authorized lo sign Ihii assurance on behalf of the
Contractor.

Contractor Certlflcatloo

The Contractor certifies thai it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the gratu, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will.be furnished us the Contractor upon written
request lo (he NH Department of Ener^).

T?rV7.\\D<^. , -
Name and Title of Contractor Rcpresenlaiivc

lalgQigrs
bareativeContractor

Tri-<^ounty Community Action Program, Inc.
53 Main Street, BeHin, NH 03570
603-326^26

AwardNo. DE-EE00099I6

(7DA No. tl.043

Tri'County Community Action Program. Inc.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT J

CERTiPlCATlON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABttm'

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federtl granli equal to or greater than $30,000 and swarded on or after October I. 2010, to repon on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub*granis of S30.000 or more. If the
initial award is below S30,000 but subsequent grant modiftcaiions result in a total award equal to or over
-S30.000, the award it subject to tbe FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Exectidve Compensation fqformotion), tbe
New Hampshire D^arusent of Energy must report the rollowiag infonnaiion for any subaward or contract
award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agMcy
4) NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
$) Program touiee
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
6) Principal place of perforiDance
9) Unique i^mtifierof4he entity (UEJiil)
10) Total compenation and oamci of (he lop five executives if:

a. More than of annual gross revenue.i are from the Federal government, and those revenues
are greater than S25M annually and

b. Compensalicn.infonnation is nor already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime gram recipicota must submit FFATA required data by the end of the moath, plus 30 days, in which the
award or sward amendment is oiade.

Tbe Orantec ideolified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with tbe provisions ofThe
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 ̂  Public Law 1ID-2S2,
and 2 CFR Pan 170 (Reporibtg Subaward ai^ Executi^ Compensation Information), and further agrees
(0 have the Grantee's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Ce^ftcadon:

The below named Grantee agrees lo provide needed ioformalion as oudioed above to (be New Hampshire
Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act..

Contrecmnlcrpresemao^ Signature Contractor's Representative Name & Title

Contractor Name Date

Award No. DE-EE0009916 , . Exhibit!
CFDAJ58I.042 Imtiili U/^Datr1fi|aoi^^
Tri-County Community Action Prograio, (nc. Pige I of 2



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBITS

FORM A

As (he Granice identified in Section 1.3 of che GenenI Provitioni, I ccnily ihet the responses to ibe below
listed questions are tme end eccurste.

I The UEI number for your entity is:

2. fn your business or orgaottation's preceding coiiq)leted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your arunial gross reveoue in U.S. federal eoniracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) S30,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcootracts, loans, grants, subgrams, and/or cooperative agreements?

YES

If tbe aoswer (o ttt above Is NO, stop here

[f tbe aoffwer to 412 above is YES, please answer (be followlag:

3. Does che public have access to information about the compensation of tbe executives in your business or
organizatioo through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or I S(d) of tbe Securities Exchange Act of
1934 ()5 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o<d)) or sectico 6104,of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If tbe answer to 4>3 abeve Is YES, stop here

If the aoswer to 03 above is NO, please aoswer Ibe faUowtag;

4. Tbe names and compensation of the five most highly compe^ted ofTicers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name: Amount;

Name:

I

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amouot:

A/nount:

Amount:

Award No. DE-EE0009916

CFDA081.O42.
Tri-County Commumty Action Program, Inc.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OK ENERGY

EXHIBIT K

CERTIFICATION REGARDING BUItD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA (Buy Ameri<i) COMPLIANCE

The Grantee identified Id Section i .3 of the General Provisions agrees to eomply with the provisions of the Build
America, Buy America Act (Buy America] Pub. L. No. IP-SS, 70901-S2 under the lofiasiructure Investment
and Jobs Act (lUA), Pub. L. No. 117>S8, as well as the Iniiial ImpUmentarion Guidance on Applieetion of Buy
America Preference in Federal Financial Assistance Programsfor Infrostivcture memorandum from the OfTice
of Management and Budget (0MB) dated April 18,2027, and further 0MB or US Department of Energy
(USDOE) guidance once issued.

Buy America seeks to strengtben Msde in America Laws ei^ bolster America's industrial base, protect national
security, and support higjr^paying jobs.' Buy America requires that the New Hampshire Department of Energy'
(Department) and the Grantees of federal ftinding shall ensure that "none of the fiinds made available for a -
Federal financial assistance program for infrascrucnnt. including each deficient program, may be obligated for a
project unless ill of the iron, steel, manufactured products, and coostruction materials used in the project ere
proceed in the United States." ^

Definitions:

lofrastructurc includes, at a minimum, the icruciures, facitities, and equipment for, in the United States:
<

•  Roads, highways, and bridges;
•  Public transportation;

■  Dams, ports, harbors, and other maritime facilities;
•  Intercity passenger and freight railroads;
•  Freight and Intemudal facilities;
•  Airports;
• Water systems, including drinking water and wastewater lysienu;
•  Electrical transmission facilities and systems;
•  Utilities;

•  Broadband Infrasirucmre;
•  Buildings and real property; and
•  Facilities (bat generate, transport, and distribute energy.

I

Further, the "infrastructure" in question must either be publidy owned or serve a public function; privately owned
infrastructure thai is not open lo the public, such as a penonal residence, is not considered "infrastructure" for
purposes of this requirement. In cases where the "public" nature of the infrastructure is unclear, the Grantee -
should contact the Department. The Depanmeol will coniuit with the USDOE which will render s detcmunation.

Project means the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of infrastructure iri the United States.

Cottstructioo Materials includes an article, material, or supply - other than an item of primarily iron or steel; a
manufactured product; cement and cemcntitious materials; aggregates such as sloue, sand, or gravel; or aggregile
binding agerUs or additives - that is, or consists primarily of:

•  Non*ferrous thetals;

•  Plastic and pclymer*based products (including polyvinylchioride. composite building materials, and
polymers used in fiber optic cables);

» Glass (including optic glass);
•  Lumber; or

•  Drywall.

Award No. DE-EE00099I6 m!
CFDA No. 81.042 Inirialr^Lstreijt^l'aO
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Domestk content procurement prerereoce mesns and refen to the same thin^ &s "Buy America Preference."
These lenns mean all iron and steel used in the project are produced in (he United States; the manufactured
products used in (he project are produced in the United States; or the constniciion maierials used in the project are
produced in the United Slates,

None of the funds provided under (his grant to the Grantee may be used for a project for Infrastructure unless:

). All iron and iieel used in the project are produced in (he United States-^his means all
manufacturing proceaaet, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings,
occurred in the United States;

2. All manufactured products used in the project are produced in the United Statcs-this means the
minuractured product was manufacture in the United States; and (be cost of the ccmponeius of
the,manufactured product that ere mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States is
greater than 55 percent of the total cost of all components of the manufactured product, unless
another standard for determining the minimum amouni of domestic content of ̂e manufactured
product ties been ealablishedunder applicable law or regulation; and

3. All construction materials arc manufactured In the United Staies-dus means itui all
manufacturing processes for Che construction material occurred in (he United Siata.

The.Buy America Preference only applies to articles, materials, artd supplies that are consumed in, incorporated
into, or affixed to en infrastructure project. As such, it does not apply to tools, equipment, and supplies, sucb as
tteiporary scaffolding, brought into the construciioo site and removed it or before the completiob of the
Infrastiucture project. Nor doea a Buy America Preference apply to equipment aod furnishings, such as movable
chairs, desks, aod portable computer equipment, that are used at or within the finished infrastructure project but
are not an integral part ofthe structure or permanently alTixed to the infrastructure project

The Grantee and its subcontractor, subgraniee. or other person, firm, or corporation, will provide ibc best
available documentation illustrating compliance with the Buy America Preference. The D^artmcnt reserves the
right to request additional roformaticm from the Grantee to further demonstrate compliance with the Buy America
preference. Compliance may be met by providing the foUowing;

1. A written statement from the manufacturer demonstrating (hat (he iron, steel, manufactured
products, or construction materials purchased from that manufacturer were produced In the
United States.

2. Photographic evidence that ibe iroo, steel, manufactured products, or con^ructiOQ materiib were
produced in the United States.

"iJ Other documentation prt-opproved by (be Department.

tVoiwrt:

When rsecessary, the Grantee may Kck a waiver from the Buy America Preference requirements. Any issued
waiver is made by (he USDO£. The Cratitee must contact the Department with iu intent to seek a waiver from
the Buy America Preference requirements. The Department will submit the waiver request oo behalf of the
Grantee to USDOE. Requests to waive the application of the Buy America Preference must be in writing.
Waiver requests are subject to public comment periods of no less than 15 days, as well as review by (he OfTice of
Management and Budget (0MB). Current dmcfhune estimate fkorn request to approval Is 45-dO days.

Waiven must be based on one of the following justifications:

1. Applying the Buy America Preference would be inconsistent with (he public interest (Public
Interest);

Award No. DE-EBXK)9916 ial_5>hibit K
CFDA No. 81.042 Initiab
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2. The types of iron, steel, muuractured products, or construction materials arc not produced in the
United States in sufTicieiit and reasonably available quantities or ofa satisfactory quality
(Nonavailability); or
The inclusion of iron, steel, maoufactored products, or construction materials produced in (he
United Slates will increuc the cost of the overall project by more than 25 percent (Unreasonable
Cost).

Requests to waive the Buy America Preference must include the following:

• Waiver type (Public Interest. Nonavailability, or Unreasonable Cost);
•  Recipient name and Unique Entity Identifier (UEI);
• A detailed jutttficaiion ait to how the non-domestie iicm(s) is/arc essential the projec<;
•  A certification thai the Grantee made a good foith effort to tuilieii bids for domestic products supported by

lerms included in requests for proposals, conlncts, and non»proprictary communications with potential
suppliers:

•  Total estimated project con, with estimated Federal share and recipient cost share breakdowns;
• . Total estimated infrastructure costs, with estimated Federal share and recipient cost share breakdowns;
•  A brief description ofihe project, its location, and the specific iDfrastrucune involved;
•  List and description of iroo'or steel item(s), manufactured goods, and/or construction material(s) die

recipient seeks to waive from the Buy America Preference, including name, cost, countryfics) of origin,
and rdevani PSC and NAICS codes h>r each;

'■ * A justification staiemcnt-^iased on one of the applicable justifications outlined abovor-as to why the
items in question cannot be procured domestically, iociuding the due diligence performed (c.g., market
research, industry outreach) by the recipient to attempt to avoid the need for a waiver. Thii justi fication
may cite, if applicable, the absence of any Buy Amcrica^ompliant bids received for domestic products in
response to a soliciuHon; and

•  Anticipated impact to the project if 00 waiver is issued.

The USOOE tod the Department may request, and the Grantee must provide, additional information for
consideration of this wavier. The USDOE 'a final determination regarding approval or rejection of the waiver
request may not be appealed.

^ .( B.)
Contrad».Vpreicntaiive Signature Contractor's Representative Name & title

Tri-Countv Community Action Program. Inc. ^
Contractor Name Date

Award No. De-ES0009916 yExhibii K
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENEKCV

EXHIBIT L

CERTIFICATION REGARDING NHPA and NEPA COMPLIANCE FOR WAP23

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the GcoersI Provisions agrees to comply with the
provisions of the National Environmentid Policy Act (NEPA) 42 U.S.C. §4321 et seq., nilcs
promulgated thereunder (40 CFR Pans 1500-1508). guidance documents issued by the Office of
Management and Budget or the US Department of Energy (USDOE), New Hampshire
Department of Energy (Department) executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement,
and USDOE Office of Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy (HERE) NEPA Detcrrnination
OFO-SEP'-ALRD-2023A (NEPA E>cter7nination). The NEPA Determination only applies to
activities funded by the GFO-SEP-ALRD-2023A, Administrative end Legal Requirctnentj
Document.

The Grantee agrees to assure compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation
Act (NHPA) and the Department executed Historic Preservation Programmalic Agreement prior
to authorizing the use of funds.

The Grantee agrees that it will only fund activities that are listed within ibe "Bounded
Categories" pursuant to the NEPA Dctenninatioo. which include:

1. Administrative activities associated with management of Che designated Weathcrization
Office and management of programs and strategies in support of weatherization activities.

2. Develbpineni and implementation of training programs and strategics for wealhcrizalion
effort, including initial home energy audits, final inspection.^, and client education.

3. Purchase of vehicles and equipment needed for administrative activities, weatherization
energy audits, installation of measures indicated below, and quality control inspections.

4. Weatherization activities provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the
respective Recipients' the Department executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement,
are installed in existing buildings, are appropriately sized, are covered by Appendix A of 10 CFR
440. end/oT approved as part of the energy audit approval procedures and material approvals
process, and limited to:

a. Building Shell Measures:

i. Install insulation where needed;'
ii. Perform air sealing;
iii. Repair and replace windows, storm windows, install window film, awnings

and solar Kreens;
b. Mechanical Measures:

i. Clean, rune, repair, or replace hearing and/or cooling systems;
ii. Iflstall duct and heating pipe insulatioo;
iii. Repair leaks in healing/cooling ducts;
iv'. Install programmable thermostats;

Award No. DE-EE00099I6 ../ Exhibit L
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V. Repair/replace domestic water heaters;
vi. Install domeshc hoi water heater lank insulation;

c. Electric and Water Measures:

i. Install efficient light sdurces;
ii. Install low'flow showerheads;
iii. Replace tnefTicient refrigerators with energy-efTicienl models.

5. Energy-related health and safety measures (per Weatherization Program Notice 22-7, or
the n:K>st current guidance) provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the Department
executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, occur in existing buildings, and are
limited to:

a. Combustion appliance safery inspections;
b. Air quality assessment and limited removal of formaldehyde, volatile organic

compounds, flammable liquids, and other air pollutants;
c. Gas and bulk fuel leak inspections;
d. Testing aod/or containment, removal or disposal of lead, asbestos, mold, moisture,

refngerant, mercury, and other materials so WAP activities may be completed:
e. Radon testing and the installation of precautionary measures to minimize radon

infiltration, iocludLDg but not limited to, sump pump covers, covering exposed dirt
floors with polyethylene sheeting which contains a rating of no more than 0.1 perm,
which is se^ed and attached at all seams, walls and foundation penetrations;

f. inspection of combustion appliances and installation of carbon monoxide and
smoke alarmi;

g. Install ventilation as required by the American Society of Heating and Air-
Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 62.2-2016 standard, including blower door
testing addressing infiltration, ventilation, and exhaust.

I

6. Weatherization Readiness Fund (WRF) supported activities focused on structural, health,
and safety issues in the dwelling which must be addressed before weatherization measures can be
safely and effectively irutalled. provided that those activities adhere to the requirements of the
.Dcpartmcot executed Historic Preservation Programmaiic Agreement, are installed in existing
buildings, aod are limited to;

a. Repair/replace damaged windows aod doors;
b. Electrical and plumbing repairs; • ' '
c. Roof repairs;
d. Interior and exterior wall repairs;
c. Ceiling repain;
f. Floor repairs;

■ g. Foundation' or subspace (crswl ̂ ace) repairs;
h. Exterior drainage repairs limited to gutter repair or replacement, trimming shnibs.

and/or gnding in close proximity to the perimeter of the foundation.

7. Incidental and necessary energy-related repairs and replacements limited to:

a. Repair/replace damaged windows and doors;
b. Electncal and plumbing repairs:

AwirdNo.DE-EE00099l6 (.V ENiibit L
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8. Oevelopment, implenienUition, and installation of onsitc renewable energy technology
from renewable resources^ provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the Department
executed Historic Prtservation Programmatic Agreement, are installed in or on an existing
structure, and do oot require ground disturbance or tree removal, ahd limited to:

a. PV systems appropriately sized that do not exceed 60 kW;
b. Solar hot water heating systems appropnately sized that do not exceed 200.000

BTU/HR;
c. Battery storage, if epplrc^le, attached to a structure (e.g., inside a garage) and not

visible from the public right of way.

Activities/projects not listed above, including ground disturbing activities and tree removal;
activities wh^e the following elements exist: extraordinary circumstances, cumulative impacts
or cormected actions that may lead to significant effects on the human environment, or any
inconsistency with the "integral elements" (as contained in i 0 CFR Part 1021. Appendix 8) as
they relate to a particular project; and activities restricted elsewhere in Award No. DE*
EE0009916 are not "Allowable Activities."

Activities that do not qualify as "Allowable Activities" as defined above are subject to additional
NEPA review, which requires additional documentation and submission of an environmental
questionnaire: If the Contractor wants to fund activities that do not qualify as "Allowable
Activities," (hen Contractor agrees to notify the Department WAP Administrator, and to seek
NEPA review through the Department WAP Administrator. Activities requiring NEPA review
are not authorized for Federal funding and the Contractor may not undertake or fund those
activities unless and until the US DOE Contracting OfRccr, through the Department WAP
Administrator, provides written authorization for those activities.

All activities related to hazardous material identified during a WAP job wilt be managed is
accordance with applicable federal, stale, and local requirements.

The Contractor agrees to document conformance with the Allowable Activities listed above
before commencement of any project.

The Contractor agrees to complete the online US DOE training on NEPA and Historic
Preservation at vvu^v.cneriiv.gov/nodc/4.S 16S16. Proof of complete training roust be submitted
to the Department WAP Administrator.

Contracto^^epresentalive Signature Contractor's Representative Name A Title

Tri-Coxmiy Communiiv Action Procram. Inc.
Contractor Name Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, D«vid M. Scanltn, Secreitiy of State of (he State of New Hampshire, do hcreb>- cenify that TRI*C'OlfNTY COMMltNITV

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. {TRJ^Ol^NTV CAP) ij b New Himpsltire Nonprofit Cnrporotion regwtered to transact business in
New Hampshire on May II, 1965. 1 ftirthcr certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's oflicebBvc
been received and is in good standing as far as this office Is conamed.

Business II): 63020

Certificate Number: 0006199324

H
A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I heretn set my hand and cause to be afllxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampthlrc,

this 4th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scfljilan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

.Sandy Alonzo ; . hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the CorporatiofVLLC; cennoi be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected board chair of Tri-Counly Community Action Program. IfK.. .
(CorporallofVLLC Name)

2. The following is a trve copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of DIrectors/sharehotders, duly ceiled and
held on _June 27lh 2023 . at twhich a quorum of the DIreclors/shareholders were present and volirw.

(Date)

VOTED: That Jeanne Robfilard CEO and or Randall Pllotle CFO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Coniroci SignoiOfy) ^

to duly authorized on behalf of TrnCounty Community Action Program, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements '
wfth the State

(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute'any and all
documenis. agreemerits and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modtficatiorts iheteto, which
may in his/her ludgment be desirable or neoeasary (0 effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby ceilffy that said vote has not been amended or repeaied and remains in full force end effect as of the
date of the contracVconirac: anendmenl to which this oerfrficate to attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that ft to understood that the State of
New Hampshtre will rely on this certificate as evidence that (he person(8) listed above current/y occijpy the
posltion(8) Indicated and that they have fuD authority to bind the' corporaUon. To the extent that there are any
limits on tho aulhofity of any Itoied individual to bind the corporation in conuecia wfth the State of New Hampshire
el! such ilmllatJona are expressly stated herein.

0ated:j3jSh_)5^3
Sigrtafure of E
Name: Sandy
Title: Board Chair

cer

Rev. 03/24/20



AC^RCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OAtiiWRioonrm)

OtOV3024

THIS CERTIFJCATE »ISSUED AS A HATTER OF IKF0RMAT10N ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLD
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR MECATTVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE PO
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REPRESENTATIVE OR PROOUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
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INDEPENDENT AUDtTORS' REPORT

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

iKAL

lED oijiitC AC(:oi;NT,>yfrs

K'Vt-K • jrii.riiiinji-i

h'OKTllCoS'T'.V
To the Board of Oirectora of

TrvCounty Cornmunity Action Program. Inc. and Affiltate

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompan^ng consolidated financial statements of Tn-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New HampsNre nonprofit orgar^izations), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the related
consolidated statements of functional expenses, end cash flows for the years then ended, the
related statement of activities for the year ended Jur>e 30, 2023. and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, (he cor^solklated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate as. of June; 30.
2023, and the changes in its net assets and Its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Slates of Aniertca.

BmIs for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United
Stales of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptmller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described In tite Auditors' Responsibilities for (he Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be Independent of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate end to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opiniorts.

Rosponslbllltios of Manogemont for tho Financial Statomanta

Management is responsible for (he preparation and fair presentation of (he consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and melntanance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material mlsstatemer^, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing (he consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Th*County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within or>e year after ttie date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be
issued.



Auditors' Responslbllittos for the Audit of the RnancM Statemertts

Our o^ctives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about wftetber the cor^lidated flnancia!
statements as a wtiole are free from material mlsslatement. whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that en audit
conducted in 8ccordar>ce with generally accepted auditing standards and Govomment Auditing
Sienderds will always detect a material misstaiemeni vs^n if exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
Internal control. Miastatements are considered material if there-is a substantial likelihood (hat.
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Goyemment Auditing Standerds. we:

•  Exerdse professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regardlrtg the amounts 8r)d disclosures In the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an urxJerstanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-Couniy Community Action Program.
Inc. and Afflilate's internal control. Accordir)gly, no such opinion Is expressed.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenees of
significani accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated fmancial statements.

•  Conclude whether, In our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggmgate, thai raise substantial doubt about Tri-County Community Action Program,
inc arvj Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemence regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we Identified during (he audit.



Supptemwtary tnfohnation

Our audit was conduded for the purpose of forming en opinion on the consbtidalod fmanda!
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule* of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of FoderaJ Regulations fart 200, Uniform /\dm/n/5frsf)ve
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such Information is the rcsporisibflity of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consoiidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures. IrKtuding comparing and
reconciling such Information directly to the undedyihg accounting and other records used to
prepare the coneolidated financtal statements or to the consolidated fir^anclal statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing starxferds generally
accepted In the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
awanfs is fairty stated. In ell matertai respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

./

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated*
November 13. 20231. on our consideration of TrvCoonty Community Action Program. Ir>c.'s intemal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grartl agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal controf over -finandal reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and rx>t to provide an opinion on the etrectiveness of tri-
County Community Action Program, lr>c.'s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report (s an integral part of an audit performed in accordance wKh Govemmenf
Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s Intemal control
over financial reporting and complidnce.

Report on Summartred Comparative Information

We have previously audited Trf-County Community Action Program. Inc. and Affiliates' 2022
finandal statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited finar>clal
statements in our report dated November 15, 2022. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
Information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, Is consistent, in an
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13.2023



TM^QUMTY COMMUNITY ACTION PRf^RAM tHC AND AFFtUATE

CONSOLIDATeD STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Ca>h ond cash acuivalents
Rettrlcied cash. Ouardianship Services Prograrrt
Accourtts fieceivable

Pledges rocdivabto
Invenioriee

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

2023

% 4,400.730
1.313.655
2,024,546

192.212

123.409
138 868

8.103.440

2022

$ 3.827.664
977.227

1.607.274

169.166

56.759

6,970.631

PROPERTY

Property and epuipmem
Lass eccumuiatad dopradation

Proparty. net

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Right of use asset, operating
Restricted cash

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LtABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABILITIES
Currsrtt portion of lor>g term debt
Currant portion of right of use liabitity. operalir^
Accounts payebta
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salailes

. Accrued eiqienses
Refundable advances

Other liabilities

Toial currant liabUUies

NONCURRENT UABIUTIES
Right of use liability, opiarating. less currant portion
long term debt, net of current portion

Total liabilities

12.656.931

(6.522.499)

208.857

413.721

622.678

139.961

86.219
456.444

249.777
90,946
95.772

403.239
1.342.462

2.664.622

122.636
4.296.560

7J284.C10

12.764.161

(6.088.609)

6.336.432 6.70S.542

410.431

410.431

$ 15.152.450 $14.095.904

134.452

262,473

228.342
81.707

117.415

446.208
1.085.406

2.396,003

4.442,886

6.798.669

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

7.577,645
290.795

7.666.440

$15.152,450

7.037,337

259.696

7,297.035

$ 14.096,901

See Notes to Consoiidsted Financial Statements
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Tm-CQUWTY CQMMUWmr ACTION PROGRAM IWC AWD AFFII IATF

CONSOLIOATEO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPQRT
Grsntt ond contracts

ProQram funding
UtlPty programs
in-kind contrtouUons

Contiibuliona

Fundrsising
Rental income

Interest income
Gein on dispose! of property

Other revenue

Without Donor
Restrlctlona

I 39.636.536
1.131.923
1.458.145
479.251
252.119

23.626

867.061
26,196
6.617

2.735

With Donor

Restrict kine

5  166.367

2023

Total

$ 39,604.923
1.131.923

1.456.145
479.251
252.119

23.626

667.061
26.196

6.817

2022

Total

$ 33.019.026
1.176.528
1.662.325

228.341
140,578

6.616
797.436

464

8,674

Total revenues end other support 43.864.409 166,367 44.052.796 37,248.999

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICl^NS .137.290 (137.2901 .

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrfctlons 44.021.690 31,097 44.052,796 37.248.099

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services:
Agency Fund
Head Stert

Guardianship
Transportation
Volunteer

Carroll County Dental
Homeless

, Enew and Community Development
Elder

Housing Services

1,314.337
3,107.666

651.255

1.404.213
72.150

679,379
20.422.871

13.099.599
U76.827
212.979

•

1.314.337
3.107.6S6
651.255

1.404,213
72.150

679.379
20.4^.671
13.099.599
1,276,827
212,076

1,453.842

2.792.837

656.956

892,112
62,053

673,708
17.630.850
9.978.945
1,095.578
246.736

Total program services 42,241.498 42.241.496 35.467.617

Supporting Activities:
GenersI end ̂ ministrative
Fundraising

1,236,560

3.315

1.236,560
3.31S

1,146,090
1.266

Total supporting activitios 1.239.895 1.239.695 1.147.356

Total functional expenses 43.461.391 . 43.461.391 36.634.873

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 540.308 - 31.097 571.405 614.026

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 7.037.337 259.698 7.297.035 6,663.009

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR S 7.577,645 t  290,795 S 7.666.440 ■ $ 7.297.035

See Notee to Consolidated Financial Siatemehts
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TRI^QUMTY COMMUNITY ACTlOM PROGRAM IfiC AND APFlUATE

CONSOLtOATEO STATEMENTS OP CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENOED JUNE 30 2023 AND 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in nel eseets
Adjustmenta to reconcile change in net eseele lo
net cash provided by operettng ectividee

Oepreclation end emorttzation
Gain on dcepoee) of properly

Oeaease (increase} in aesete;
Accounts recefvsbie

Pledges-receivsble
Inventories

Prepeid expenses
Irtcreese (decrease) in llablUUes;

Accounts payable
Accrved compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable edvarwes

Otnef llabnittes

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATINC ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property end eQU<prr>onl

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment on jcng-liKm debt
Repayment on capital lease obllgetlons

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OP CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during iha year (or;

Interest

2023 2022

(  571.405 S 614.026

526.649

(6.817)

(217.272)
(23.016)
(63.650)

(77)

193.971

21.435
9.241

(21.643)
(42.969)
257.056

1,206,613

8,091

(161,013)

1152.922)

(140,807)

(140.607)

912.784

5.216.322

520,221

(8,874)

(190,025)
47.227

(6.774)
(85.217)

258,170
(5.565)

(301,728)
(149,160)
122,066
(31S.239)

499,110

8.874
(158,013)

(149.139)

(126.342)

(129.342)

220,629

4.994.693

S  6.126.106 I S.215.322

88.645 95,695

See Notee to Consolidated Financial Statemente
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t. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NGTE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. and its affiliate. Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated t^ecause Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.
All significant Intercompany Items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North. Inc. (Cornerstone) Is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
Incorporated under the laws of the Slate of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction, and operation of comrriunity-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of acbvltlos

The Organization's programs consist of the following;

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This Includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accountir>g. payroll and HR services, legal and audit services. IT support,
martagement support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include (he management and allocation of funding
received throuigh a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Nead Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
(heir families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All chlidreri receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability



TRI^QUNTV COMMUNITY ACTION PRQGRAftf|

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide ir>dividualized activities that support their child's growth arxJ
development.

TrI-County Community Action Head Start funded enrollment Is 217, but
over the course of the program year serves approximately 250 children In
Carroll. Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based
classrooms and 1 home-based option.

Guardmnship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentaify disabled, chronically mentally III. traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dernentia. and multiple medical
Issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include. . conservatorship.
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Tranaportatlon

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-lo-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 14
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer'

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
e minimum group of 208 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 50
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and lime with over 60 local non-profil and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend ■ on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 16.000 hours yearly.

10



TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM,\fiC. AND AFFILIATP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Carroti County Dental

Tamworlh Dental Center {the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and Individuals. The Center offers a full
array-of services including preventative. restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and o^ers a
sliding fee scale, based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications neceasary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Homeiass

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some_housir>g rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Bnarav Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs end
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

LoW'Income WeatherlzaUon

The NH wealherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase theii health, safety, and comfort; and Improve the quality of llvir>g
while improving housing stock In communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also.creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 comrhunity
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServipeLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and careglver
supports.

11



TRI^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PRnr,PAM l^r., AND AFFILIATP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Housfna Services

Comefstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) Is subject to a Project
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD.

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex In Berlin. New
Hampshire for the elderly.. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Ad and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cornerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance. Titie 2 U.S. Coda of Federal Regulations (CFR) perl 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles end Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit is performed as it
relates to Cornerstone's compliance with its major federal program in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
An unmodified opinion was issued.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of TrI-County Community Action Program.
Inc. and affiliate have been prepared utltelng the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepte^d in the United States of
America, as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting' Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than
conlrlbutlons. and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date
of receipt or payment of cash.

Baala of Dresentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP). which require the
Organization to report information regarding 11$ financial position and activities
accordmg to the following net asset classifications:

12



TRI^QUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AMD AFFIUATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Net &ss9ts without donor restrictions include net assets that are not
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may t^ expended for
any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor rBstrictfons include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions
are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organizalion or by passage of; time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated (he funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $290,795 and $259,698
at June 3p. 2023 and 2022, respectively. See Note 13.

Contiibutlona

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
r»et assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Recelvabia

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. Past due receivables are
written off at management's discretion using the direct write off method; this is not
considered a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the tJnited
State because the effects of the direct write off method approximate those of the
allowance method. Management selects accounts to be written off after analyzing
past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable, and collection rates for
receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of time outstanding. The
Organization does not charge Interesi on outstanding accounts receivable.

13



INC. ANP AFFIklATR

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Property and Depreciation

Acquisrtions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost (ess accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-llne method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an Individual program is
chargad dir^ly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

'Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included In the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows;

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture end equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rerit Subaldv

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the relate services or expenditures are
performed or incurred, funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $403,239 and $446,208 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022. respectively.
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TR|-<;01INTY COMMUNITY AiCTlON PROGRAM. INC, AND aFFIUATP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Nonprofit tax status
The Organizatipn is a not-for-profit. Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Organization files information returns In the
United States. The Organiratlon's Federal Form 990 (IRetum of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax). Is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income faxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for- financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
Management does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes associated with uncertain lax positions ,has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization ̂ maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013. employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were no discretionary
ccntrlbuttons recorded. Further information can be obtained from the Organization's
403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and oooda

Contributions of donated servtces that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased If not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets wHh donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAtEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2Q?2

Donated proportv and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use ar*J
contributions of cash that must bo used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Prom lees to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substaritially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be cpllected in more than one-
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted Interest rates applicable to the years In which the promises are received.
Amortization of Ihe discounts is included in contributicn revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the.due date, Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the dorrors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassrfied to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no
unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30. 2023 and 2022.

As of June 30. 2023 and 2022,. there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions In the amount of $192,212 and $169,196,
respectively. This amount is included In contributions in. the- Consolidated
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect Ihe reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
penod. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates;
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TRI.COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Fair Value of Financial Instrumente .
Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of Its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the. Organization's f1rrar>clal
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Furrctional allocation of expensea

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and ralated expenses are allocated to the

various programs and supporting sen/Ices based on actual or
estimated time employees spend on each function as reported on a
timesheet.

Workers Comoensatfon expenses are charged to each program
based upon the classification of each employee and allocated to the
various program based upon the time employees spend on each
function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each
program as a percentage of total salaries.

Fringe flenefffs are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool, These
expenses include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health
and dental insurance arxJ unemployment compensation. The pool is
allocated to each program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon
specific assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation
expense on the statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses ate applicable to assets which are
used by multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the
benefiting program based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs
related to a building include depreciation, insurance, utilities, building
maintenance, etc. These costs are reported as space costs on the

• statements of functional expenses.
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on
vehicle usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs
based on square footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture
and equipment is allocated to programs using the book basis of the
insured assets.

The rantainina aherad expansma are charged to an Indirect Cost
Pool and are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of
program expenses. The expenses include items such as
ddmlnistrative salaries, general liebility Insurance, administrative
travel, professional fees, and other expenses which cannot be
specifically Identified arxl charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rale proposal for the paid leave, fringe
tenefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
^rvlces. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022. received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12%. actual
rates for the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022 were approximately 11,26% and
10.95%, respectively, which is allowable because It is less than the provisional rale.

..T

Advertislno policy

The Organization uses advertising to inform the communrty about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising Is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $20,143 and
$6,698, respectrvely.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03.
'Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.' The ASU is limrted to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs Is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2023 and 2022.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Organization derives revenue primarjiy from grants, .contracts, and
contributions. Grants are recognized as revenue upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the sen/ice has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that Is, in
substance, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Cornerstone derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the apartment
unit is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term of one year and
are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred to the lessee
In an amount that reftects the consideration Cornerstone expects to be entitled to In
exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed
as incurred.

New AccountInQ Pronouncement
In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02. Leases (Topic 842), to increase
transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets
and lease llabllitjes on the statement of financial position and disclosing key
informaliori about leasing arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard
applies a right of use model that requires, all leases with a lease term of more than
12 months, to recognize an asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term and liability to make lease payments to be recorded. The
Organization elected not to restate the comparative period. The Organization also
elected r>ot to reassess at adoption (i) expired or existing contracts to detem>ine
whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the lease classification of any existing
leases, (iii) initial direct costs for existing leases. The adoption of ASU 2016-02
resulted In the recognition of an operating right of use assets of $208,857 and
operating lease tiabllittes of $208,857 as of June 30. 2023. Results for periods
beginning prior to July 1., 2022 continue to be reported in accordance with the
Organization's historical accounting treatment. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did
not have a material Impaict on the Organization's results of operations and cash
flows.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30 2023
and 2022;

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated
Restricted cash. Guardianship Seivices Program'
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Restricted cash

Total financial assets
Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 290,795 259.690
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2023 2022

$  4.400.730 5  3,827.664
1.313,655 977.227
2,024,546 1.807.274
192,212 169.196
413721 410.431

8.344 864 7.191 79?



TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFfLlATg

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Restricted cash. Guardianship'SeA/ices Program 1,313.655 077,227
Restricted cash 413.721 410.431
Less net assets v\rith time restrictions to be

met in less than a year f254.S371 (207.8791

Amounts not available within one year 1 763.634 1.439.477

Financial assets avaitable to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 6 581.230 ^ g,752 3^5

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $6,982,000 and $5,899,000 at June 30.
2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original rnaturlties of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are Insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the
year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total In the statements of
cash flows as of June 30:

2023 2022

Cash, operations $ 4.400.730 $ 3.827,664
Restricted cash, current 1.313,655 977.227
Restricted cash, long term / 413.721 41o!431

Total cash and restricted cash $ 6I2819Q $ 5 215.322

Cash Restrictions

The Organization Is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Not© 7. It is required to maintain a
balance of $19|.968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S! Department of
Agriculture.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $20,079 and $20,069, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022. These amounts are included in restricted cash in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization Is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond Issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance In the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30. 2023 and 2022 was $174,841 and $174,807. respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included In restricted
cash in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of cliants who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30. 2023 and 2022 was $1,313,655 and $977,227. respectively.
These -amounts are irrcluded in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within thfe account et June 30, 2023 and 2022
was $1,313,655 and $977,227, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash.
Guardianship Services Program balance on the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North. IrK. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules, and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
Jur>€ 30,.2023 and 2022 was $218,601 and $215,555, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2023 and 2022. inventory included weatherizatlon materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physicdi
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in. first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30. 2023 and 2022 consists of weatherizalion materials,
totaling $123,409 and $59,769. respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTES. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2023;

Building
Equipment
Construction in progress
land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 10,119,418

'  2,278,559
42,114

418,840

Accumulated

Depreciation

$ 4,630,469

1,892,030

Property consists of the following at June 30.2022:

Building
Equipment
Construction In progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 10,039,601
2.329.022

6,688
418.840

Accumuletad

Depreciation

$■ 4.426.613
1,661,996

Net
Book Value.

S 5.488.949
386,529

42.114
418.640

Net
Book Value

$ 5.612,988
667,026

6,688
418.840

? 6P88,6gg ^ 6705542

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value Is Immaterial to the financial statements, is not included In the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for (he years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 totaled
$527,962 and $519,334, respectivdy.

NOTES ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES
For the years ending June 30. 2023 and 2022, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30. 2023 and
2022, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $249,777 and $228,342,
respectively. -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30. 2023 and 2022 consisted of
the following;

2023 2022
Note payable with the USOA requiring 360
monthly installments of $1,664. including interest
at 5% per annum. Secured by general business
assets.. Final installment due January 2027. $ 64.236 $ 80,546

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly ^
installments of $2,936, including interest at 4%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2031. 236.057 261.160

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments , of $14,485, including interest of , •
2.75% plus the bank's internal cost, of funds
multiplied by 67% with an indicative rate of
3.28%. Secured by first commercial real estate
mortgage on various properties and assignments
of rents at various properties. Final Installment
due August 2040. 2,276.888 2.377,169

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. This capital advance is not
subject to interest or principal amortization and
will be forgiven after 40 years, or In August 2047. 1,617,600 1.617.600

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage
payable due to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority. The mortgage is hot subject to interest
or principal amortization. Payments are deferred
for 40 years; final payment due in August 2047. 250.000 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs 4.444,781 4.586.475

Unamortized debt Issuance costs (8.270) (q 'i 57^

Total long term debt 4.436.511 4.677.318
Less current portion due within one year (139.961) (134.452)

L_4.22L5§fl S 4.442866
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The scheduled maturilies of long-term debt as of June 30. 2023 were as follows;

Years ending
June 30 Amount .

2024 $ 139.961

2025 145.697

2026 151.677
2027 148.113
2028 143,453

Thereafter 3.715.680

S 4 444 781

As described at Note 3. the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June 30. 2023 and
2022 at 9.25% and 5.75% per annum, respectively. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30. 2023 and 2022. The line is subject to renewal each
January.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

On July 1, 2022, the Organization was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). As part of implementing ASU 2016-02, the Organization evaluated
current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use
(ROU) asset represents the Organization's right to use underlying assets for the
lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the Organization'.s obligation to make
lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and lease liabilities, all
of sYhich arise from operating leaseis, were calculated based on the present value of
future lease payments over the lease terms. The Organization has elected to
discount future cash flows at the risk-free borrowing rates commensurate with the
tease terms, which was 3.01% at June 30. 2023. Common expenses, classified as
space costs In the accompanying financial statements, are considered a non-lea^
component under FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs are Incurred. The
Organization's operating leases are described below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2023 AND 2022

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month-tp-month basis.
For the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and offrce equipment totaled $147,801 and $141,820. resp>ectively.

Lease liability maturities as of June 30. 2023 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30: Amount

2024

2025

■2026
2027
2028

Total undiscounted lease liability
Less Imputed interest

Total lease liability

91.317
59,685
52,460
11,372
3,543

218.377
f9S20>

!  Tmsi

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS
The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start. Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative nriarket wage for similar
paid positions.

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as foltov^:

Professional services and
services for disabled

Pecking, setup and delivery of
congregate and home
delivered meals

Head Start

$  76,770 $

Senior
Meals

102.077

Total

$  76.770

102.077

I  ZLZZfi S 102 077

2$
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

The fair value of donate services Included as contributions in the consolidated
financial staternents and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30. 2022 are as follows;

Head Start

Senior

Meals Total
Professional services and

services for disabled

Packing, setup and delivery of
congregate and home
delivered meals

2.479 $

55.359

2.479

55.359

S  55 359 S 57838

Numerous volunteers have donated significant amounts of time to. the
Organization's program services. Although no amounts have been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, management estimates the fair value of those
services to be approximately $367,930 and $277,300 for the years ended June 30,
2023 arid 2022, respectively.

The Organization is also the benencrary of a donation of in kind In the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs.
The value of the Ih-kind rent is recorded atjhe difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

The fair value of donated facilities Included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total
Difference between rent paid

and market rate $ 69 097 $ 4 100 $ 73 167

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Senior

Head Start Meals Total

Difference between rent paid
and market rate S 58 230 $ J^^QQ S 60 Q3Q
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The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
Jur^ 30, 2023 are as follows;

Head Start Homeleas Transpoftation Total
Employee use of
home $ 73.495 S - $ . $ 73,495

Donated goods . 24.948 24 948
Hotel rooms for

homeless clients 126.764 126 764

Total i— S 21212 I 22Z.22Z

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Head Start Homeless Total

Employee use of home
Donated goods
Hotel rooms for homeless clients

Total

56.789 $

1.400
52.284

56,789
1.400

52.284

5  &Ufi3 I 53-684 $ 110.473

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022, approximately
$39,361,299 (89%) and $32,598,596 (88%). respectively, of the Organization's total
revenue was received from federal and slate governments. If a significant
reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a stgnificant impact on
the Organization's programs and activrties.

Cornerstone receives a large majority of its support from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June 30. 2023 and 2022.
approximately 61% and 64%, respectively, of Cornerstone's total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerslcrw
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development.

/
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The majority of Corr>erstone's assets are apartment projects, for which operations
are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In addition.
Cornerstone operates in a regulated environment. The operation of CornerBtone Is
subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD. Such admlnlstratrve
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an ad of Congress or an
administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes may occur with little
notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the'administrative
burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2023 and 2022;

,2023 2022

Temporary municipal funding $ 192.212 S 169,196
Restricted buildings 36,257 38,084
Loans - HSGP 23,484 24,234
RSVP program funds 15,708 6.255
FAP/EAP 14.092 12,079
CO Coos 5,099 6.132
Head Stan 3.577 2,370
CO Carroll 180 427
CO Grafton 180 421
LI WAP Program 6 .

RSVP - Matter to Balance . 500

Total net assets with donor restrictions 5 290.795 2.

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Comotiance.

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required-to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Envfronmentaf Continaenctas

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.
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The exterior soil and interior parts of the East* Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2.
2012. the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Bu]ldir)g had been compleled to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to sKe occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released into the environment, the Organization could be required.to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30. 2023 and subsequently, legal actions.were brought
against the Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as
of June 30. 2023, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability,
no amount has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Cornerstone's regulatory agreement with HUD. the Organization is required
to sel aside amounts Into a replacement reserve for the replacement of property
and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUO-resthcted deposits of
$207,956 and $206,162 were held in a segregated account at June 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

During the year ended June 30. 2023, HUD approved a loan from the replacement
reserve account to the operating account to cover operating expenses due to the
delay in HAP vouchere being processed by HUD. Once all HAP vouchers are
processed and paid, Cornerstone will pay ba^ the replacement reserve account the

■  loan balance of $26,649. HUO-restricted deposits generally are not available for
operating purposes.

Cornerstone's use of the residual receipts account is contingent upon HUD's prior
written approval. Residual receipts of $6,454 and $3,003 were held in a segregated
account for the years ended June 30.2023 and 2022. respectively.

Under the regulatory agreement, Cornerstone is required to set aside amounts for the
retum of resident paid deposits. At June 30. 2023 and 2022 S4.391 and $4,390,
respectively, were held in a segregated account and generally are not avallabie for
operating purposes.
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TRI^OUNTY COMMUNITY AqT|pM PROGRAM INC AND AFRLIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

HUO has inrtiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of Cornerstone's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to S250 per unit.

In accordance with the policy noted above, Cornerstone was required to remit funds
to HUD totaling $71,396 during the year ended June 30. 2022.

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated events through November 13. 2023, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be Issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH QOVERNMBNT AUOmNG STANDARDS . /.

To the Board of Directora of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance wrth the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of A/nerica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued-by the Comptroller Ger>eral of the United States . the finandal
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30. 2023 and
2022. and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related staternent of activities for the year ended June 30, 2023. and the| relied
notes to the finandal statements, and have Issued our report thereon dated November 13.
2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning arid performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over finandal reporting (Internal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financiai statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s
Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc.'s Internal control.

A deftciency In internet control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements. on a timely basis. A material yvealmess is a
defidency. or a combination of defldencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signi^ant deficiency is a defrciency, or a
combination of deficiendes. In intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Qiven these limitations, durlog
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses., However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were -not
identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether TrI-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s financial statements are free from matehal misstatement. we performed tests
of Its compliance wHh certain provisions of lav/s, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance wHh which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests discio^d
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpoae of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report ia an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13. 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To ttie Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Me^for Fwhral Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2023. Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questior^ed costs.

Iri our opinion, TrLCounty Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30.2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Pederal Program

We conducted cur audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained In Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the United
Slates; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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We are required to be independent of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a'lega) determination of Tri*County Community Action Program, Inc.'s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

ResponslblUtles of Management for CompUanco

Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above arKl for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsfbilitioa for the Audit of CompUance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether miaterial noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error. end
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program, lr>c.'s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud Is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the complianoe requirements referred to above is considered material If
there is a substantial Nkelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we;

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance. whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s Internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures ttiat
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test ar>d report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Unrform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
.inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly,, no such opinion is expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control oVer Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combinatior> of deficiencies. In internal
control over compliance, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over complience is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program (hat is less severe
than a material weakness In internal control over compliance, yet Important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to Identify all deficiencies in Internal control over compliance that might be matertal
weakne^es or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did rrat identify any deficiencies In internal control, over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was rwt designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Intemai control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion Is expressed.

The purpose of this report on Interruil control over compliar>ce is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13,2023
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTinM PRQGf^ftM

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of In-
County Community Action Program. Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance artd other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of rwncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Pr^ram. Inc. which would be required to be reported In accordance
with Government Auditing Slarjderds, were disclosed during the audit.

4 No significant deficiencies In Internal control over major federal award programs during
the audit are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each
M^r Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform-
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported In accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Department of Housing arid Urban Developnwit. Emergency Solutions
Grant Program- ALN 14.231

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program - ALN
21.023

U.S. Department of the Treasury, Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds-ALN 21.027

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $1,125,160,

9. Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS • FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS • MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Trl-CouotyCommuolty Action Progrim, Inc.

SERC Key Pcrsnnf^ffl

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer SI32.000 0%
Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer S94.I60 0%
Brenda Gaf^e Chief Proeram Officer $77,080 0%
Jerry Milliken Deparrmcm Head $70,600 0%
Naihan Mills Proflram Director S5S.OOO 0%
Dennis Downs Production Suoervisor $58,240 4% $2,329.60
Jessica Young Prosram Suoervisor S38.480 4% $1,539.20
Samantha Roy Home Heating and Repair

Replacement Coordinator
$35,360 4% Sl.414.40



Jeanne lEL. Robillard

CORE CTHEWCTHS .

Prof(nm development, mtiugcmcnt and admini»irauon * Qommumr)' coUaboranoni
Development of pobc/. protocol, and tcrvke delivery to meet fundcc lundardi

Grant writing and management * DuJgct peTfoxmancc and rinanciaJ reporting
Innovative sotudons & probietn toMng * Capacity building

Profctrional preacnratioiu * Public speaking
Dedication * Imagination * Determination * Fonin/de

PnOFESSlOIVAL EXPEBlEIVnE

Tri>CoDsl7 CAmcnonil^ Action Program*, Inc.
Chief fUemfir* OCHcrr

Brrtln, NH 20t8 - et$rrei%t FT

TriaCocwtj Coanmooit/ AclJon Programs, lac.
(Siief Operating Officer
Berlin. NH 3016 •3016

Responsible foe the operations of &ix agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide over
60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Mampshire. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Directors, oversee and motutor ptogram resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget performance; tacdcal oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strat^es to improve individual programs and overall agency program
itnd fiscal pcrfunnance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Rq>on, Strategic Plan,
Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Minagerrient Team to develop new
service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Dh-ision Direceon to trouble shoot issues and problems
in the daily operations of programs.

Tri^oiutSy CoaamoniSy AeSlon Programs, Isac.
Daviaion DireeSart TCCAP Prr.vcnSion Scrricra

Bcrlta. NU 30I5.30I6

Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee
division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of
programs to meet or exceed agency defined strat^c goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, moiutor results, and prepare gnnt reports and financial statements for funders
and agency: develop fufidixising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through
participation in state and local initiarivcs relairve to prognm/dmsioo goals and service delivery
coUabonie with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Tri^Coonly CommoaJSy AHiod Programa. lac.
Program/DMaJoo DirecSorr SopporS Center at Bortfa Hooae
liUletoo* New Dampshirc 3007-MIS
Oversee dally operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residenriai
sheltu; write grants to support programs, monitor resulrs, and prepare grant reports and financial
statements for funders and parent agency; oversee prognm resources, revenues and expenditures, and
morutor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create irtd direct vicdm advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
fundraising and marketii^ strategies; parricipaie in state and local co)labt>rations to enha/KC victim
services; represent program in stare artd federal victim service inidaiivcs, including presentadon of
legislative testimony; create and preaent trainings for medical and legal prufessionals on legal lundards
and best prtciica for victim services.



JL Robitlard * 2
Bookke«pert Wonrn** Rdral EBtr«prefMrari«J IMclwork (IVREK)
BcCUebcxa. NB rarrcoc PT *iBple7n*o4
Rcipoftsiblc for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-wccWy payroll
and 941 paymcnr*, accounts payable and receivable, nrtonth end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty *cish, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail
locadofls, preparing monthly cash flow, futecasts. and standard fiscal reports for Board of Ditcctors.

Trt-CocmSj Cotnaiimjly AcSlop Programs, Inc.
DlrocS Srrricoa/Voloatoer Coordiaalort Sopporl Ccalar «< Borch Honar
LiSelaloci. Krw Hampalktra 1997 ta 9007
Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domesdc and sexual violence; supervise coun
advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunceers. and interns; develop agency systems,
pobcics and piouxols; create and present community outreach prescnutions and campaigns; present
ichool-baicd violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-caU coverage of ctisis lirsc

Difoetort HarcrldlJ Areo Jotcb£1« DSveruon Prograra
IVood«Til|«, IVmv Dampehiiv
Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion comm/iiees; establish community programming for
dn-ertcd youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain coUaboraove reiadonsKips between the court
system, juvenile service officers, local police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports on diverted youth; community outreach and educadon

Cotanaelor/Tisle I Tcochcrt A'oHhera Family InatiSola-JaOcvaoo Sbellcr
Jellereoe, New Bampabirc 199^1099
Provide individual supponive counseling to adjurficated youth, facilitate peer support groups, develop
and implcmcnr treatment plans and case management services to clients, supervise and cutor youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Edggaiiop (
BS la Biamao Sarvicea. Spriugfiekl College School of Hnxnap Servieca, BooSoa. MA
Criminal Justice Cottcentradon, CraJ*aud mth i.O CPA

AS Id Bnig and Alcohol RcbabiliSadoa Counacling IDAHC Program!
Soothara ConncellcBl Commimlly College, New Haven. CT

Adttl^ionai ffllillll, Proffcgsional l>aacratUp and dm AffilaprioM^o
♦ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Sekcimen, Tovn of Berhlchem Twice Elected 2006-2010

♦ Chainnar, Arts Alliance of Northern Kew Hampshite 2000-200\Tnam%f 1996 199$
♦ Chairman, HavcthiD Area Ftmily Violence Council 199$-200)
♦ Ccnified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Jfutnjctnr 9NH16I99
♦ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampihttt
♦ Board Member, Women's Rural Entreprcncunal Network 2014; Miri6tJMtMt^200ll-20l7
♦ Bethlehem Plinrung Board 2010 ■ 2015

♦ Bethlehem Conter%'at)on Commission 2006 • tumut

♦ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinci Member 20\1-2012 ■

♦ TCCAP; Cnmmendatioo- Dfvijion Director Award, 2011
♦ Bethlehem Citixeri'i Advisory Committee on Retyclirg 2007 2010
♦ Licensed Foster Parent. Sutc of NH 2000-2006

♦ Small Business Owner: Aurora Energies 2015- nmni
♦ SpeakcisyTrioJaa Vocalist/Sweet JammSwing Band Jaxa Vocalist t997 (Mrm/
♦ Member, United States Figure Skadng Aiio<ittion/l nternaiional Skating Insdtute tarrmf sinet 199)



Randall S. Pilotte

Summary *

Accoundogprafeisioflal with over 29 ycarsofcxpenence, orwhich2l ycariwere with# single private manufocturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionab. Key competencies include;

Finaocial Statements Accounts Payebtes Inventory Fixed Aaseis
Payroll Bank Reconciliolions Accounts Receivables Sales/Use Tax
Budgeting Cash Row Management Audits Forecasting

Experience

TRl-COUNTY COMMUNiry ACHON PROGRAM. INC. Berlin. NH 06/20l3.Preicnt

CFO (2017-Present)
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Coramiace to idendfy pcrrormancc goals for the Agency and to
-maintain syitemi to monitor perfcnriBnce against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evoluate the
financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of S18M.
•  Prepare^rovides coi^lete and aaurate finftnciaJ, statistical, and aocountmg records for the Agency and outside

regulatory agencies.
• As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate finance

policies, objectives and programs.
•  Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Direcion. Plan, direct,

coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performance reviews of Tri*Counry CAPs divisions.
•  Hire, Ualn. direct andevsluatcemployeeper^rmana within the dcparrmem; recommend promotions and aaJary

adjustmenb.
•  Provides supeivisioo and d^iion for the Facilities Management Team, ensuringtfaat all mortgages, leases and

covenants are maintained for Tri*Counry CAP'S facilities. Creation of five-year capital pbn.
•  Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated

with each property.
•  Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

nscal Director/Interim CFO (2016 - 2017)
•  Direct and manage a fbeal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounb

payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed asseb.
•  Prepare and supervise the production of financial statements including Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense

Reports, and Cost Summaries op a roonthly and annual basis.
• Maintain propo- accounting controls on greols and contributions to ensure accurate revenue repoitiog and expense

tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and auditors.
■  Ensure ail balance sheet, revenue and expense accounb are analyzed and reconciled periodtcally.
•  Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget.
• Worked with (he CFO to develop .real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing

departmental goab.
•  Prepare audit schedules for external auditors.
•  Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager(20l5-20I6)

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:



KENTNUTRmON GROUP. INC (f/k/i Blue Sol Feeds, tnc.). Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010

AiflftAQt CoalroUer (2005-2010)

•  • Ensured an accuratcand timely monthly and ycarend close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and
individual ftnancial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine maoufaciuring plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues is excess or,S200M. Additional rcsponsibilkici included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

•  Managed, tnined, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage lax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of special projects.

•  Oversaw all aspects of proprietary sofhvare, multl-oatc payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and Slate payroll tax reports, including quanerly arul year-end returns, processing of W2s, and supervision of
payroll clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as deposhories.
•  Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.
•  Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process. '
•  Oversaw month-end accruals:

•  Assisted and responded to auditota' requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property reports with appropriate stares.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported (he Corporate Controller's initiativesby providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting fuitclion.
Supervised and nioed two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate
processing and payment ofvendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accounting practices.

Accountant/Payroll Sopcrvlsbr (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. ConconJ, NH 03/1987-03/1989

AssocUte Rcsoiti Acconntant (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

Education

Bachelor of Science, Accounting FiL^NiCLfN Pierce College. Concord, NH



Breoda Gagnc
.Chief PrograiB Officer

Tfi Couoly Community Action Program Inc.

Profexsionci Summa^:
Successful oversight of the day to day aspects and operations of Tri County CAP's Traniii. Guardianship and
Energy Assistance Programs.

Eiperiencc:

Tri County Commaolty Action Program, Inc.
6/30/2020 • Presedt

Department Head. Economic Supports
6i^/2022 Chief Programs Officer

Tri Connty CAP, Inc.

Tri Coaoty Traoth
31 Pleasant St
Berlin NU 03570

S/2017-6/30/2020

Director of Traosponation

Responsibilities include;
bvcxaecing the operations and administrative functions of a social service transportation program serving Coos,
Northern GraOon and CairoU Counties.

Trl-County CAP, Inc.
Tri Coooty Transit
31 Pleasant St
BerUo NH 03S70
7/2004-5/2017

Operatioru Manager

Responsibilities Include;
*Running (he daily (^rations of a publk transit and para transit scrN'ice.
'Facility Management.
'Gathering statistics
•Quaitcriy reporting to NHDOT and BEAS.
'Prqjaring quarteriy invoices to BEAS and NHDOT
'Weekly employee scheduling, staff management.
'Creating procedure manuab
'Grant writing
'Budget preparation
'Writing Wanani Artictei
'Drug Alcohol Testing
'Emergency Preparedness

Mountain Village CoDStnicCion
P.O. Box 96

MOao, N.H. 03580
S/1905 - 1/2004.

Accounts Manager/Office Manager

Responsibilities included;
'Customer service.

'Accounting using Quick Books Pro.



'Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
'Preparing Cuslomer Steietnenti and Invoices.
'Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
'Creating and running Profit and Loss Reports.
'Dell Entry.
'Phone communicatkms and general socrelarial duties.

Mllao Parks and Recrcatfon Dept.
P.O. Box 300

Milan, N.a 03588
6/1997.3/2002

Parks and Recreation Director

Responsibilities included;
'Directed and implemented ipoits and recreational programs for youth ai>d adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dummer.

'Development of new programs and year round activities.
'Producing yearly budgets.
*E<)uipment and materials purchasing.
'Organizmg and supervising a large Volunteer staff.
'Working with the public to create new programs.
'Coordinating with the Milan Village School on athletic and after school programs.
'Applying for Federal and State Grants.

EdooitiOD:

• Graduate Gorham High School
GothamNH

• Granite State College
Emergency Management

•  Southern New Hajrqrahire Univeraity
Bachelor of Business Administration

NHDOT Courses

Fundamentals of Successful Project Management, MTAP/RTAP Financial Management Course
Basics of Facilities Management Seminar (Facility Maintenance Plan). Transit Security Workshop
FTA Drug & Alcohol Workshop. Emergei^ Planning and Disaster Management, NH Conference on Statewide
Emergency Preparedness, Procurement for Small and Medium Transit Systems.

Cenified Ttaining and Safety Reviewer
Community Tran^rtalion As^iation of America
June 20O9

Certified Safety and Security Officer
Community Transportation Association of America
10/2010

Tri State TVansit Conference

9/2007,10/2008, 10/2010,9/2011, 9/2013.9/2014.9/2016.9/2017

Grant Writing Workshop
New Hampshire Community Technical College
Berlin NH 10/2005



Oerald F. Mitllken, Jr.

EKOcutlvo Sumnuifv.

Enthusiastic, dedicatad end hardworking professionol. offering over 20 years of
bfoad-baaed experiof*© in Project Direction, policy and procedural development,
training & development, budget admlnistratioo and busir>ess operatiofts withrn fast-

.  paced environment

Experience:

Til-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Department Head: Weathertiatlon A Paellltles Oparatlona

Berfln. NH

7-1*2020 to present

Oeaign and Operaticnd guidance of WeatlwrUelion Progrems and the Agencies Facilities
DepWment. Observe,"analyze, and offer suggestions on current operations.
Establishing professlonaf relation&hips v^th clients, staff, and other stakeholders.
Meintainjng relationships tivfth clionts and finding aeetive ways lo expand the programs
effectiveness.

Tr1«County Community Action PrDgram, Inc.
Program Manager./Director: Woalherlzatlon A Employment Progrsrra

Berlin. NH

d.M3lo 6-31*2020

Provide leadership and oversight lo program's oporalions. budgets and reporting: -
Coordlnete and Integrate programs' activities.
Hire, supervise and manage staff, iru:ludir>g in-house and Itinerant errx^loyees.
Prepare grv>ts artd proposals.
Develop, prepare end Implemeni program budgets, narratives.
Review and reconcile program financial reports for reimburserrvnt.
Interact vdth program monitors, outside auditors, Federal agency auditors er)d othsrs in
review of program activitjes. compliance and financlai accountability
Develop new programs and funding sirearrB as eppropriste.

Tri^ounty Community Action Program, irtc.
Crew Chief/ State Certified Energy Auditor Berlin, NH 5-1-05 to 4 • 1 -1 5



Northern ̂ reos Eatery, Inc. North Conway. NH
President \ General Manager 11-1-2002 to 5-15-2005
Estimated food end beverage costs, requlsftionlng arxi purchasing suppries
Assisted subordinates In Identtfying and resoMng problems.
Conferred with food pro^ration ar^i other personnel to plan menus and related
activKies.

Directed hiring and assignment of personnel.
Investigated and resolved food quality and service complaints.
Maintairted all records and produced reports.
Executed daily operations of restaurant management

Hatfleld-fteynolde Electric on lES, Inc. Company Pf>oenix. AZ
Project Manager 5-15-2000 to 10-30-2002
Applied krxTwtedge of the construction trade in the daOy operation of duties.
Reviewed project proposals to determine time frame, funding limitations, procedures
for AcccmpOshlng proje^. staffing requirements and allotment of available resources
to various phases of projects.

BO Enterprises, Inc. Lake Havasu City. AZ
President I Genera/Msnager 8*1-1994 to5-15-2000
Purchased ARTISAN ELECTRIC, INC. and changed the name.
Contracted to perfom specified construction work across the state of Arizona in
accordance with architect's plans, blueprints, codes srxj other specifications.
Estimated costs of materials, labor end use of equipment required to fulfill provisions
of contract arxf prepared bids.
Conferred with clierrts to negotiate terms of contract.
Asstsled subordirtates in identifying and resolving problems.
Demonstrated effective presentation skills.



Education:

NHTI Concord
Assoclatos Degree In Electronic Technology 1985
Theory

LRCC Laconia
Etectrical Systems Irtstaflstion 8 Maintenance. 1988
Required for Journeymen elecirical testing and State
Licenses.

Additional Training:

8 CUE training course for Grant writing for non- profits. To enhance my position on the
tjoard of al.Children Unflmlted, Inc.
Successfully completed GE's prestigious 'SIX SIGMA' management course in 2001
WhBe Employed with
Hetfield-Reynolds Electric an lES, he. Company Phoenix, AZ.
Successfully completed training courses and seminars for .lead safe work practices.
asbestos awareness. OSHA 30. CPR'.electrlcel code updates.
Succes^uUy completed Business managament.classes In AZ
Duringthe 1995-2001.
Successfully completed training and testing to be a NH Slate certified Energy Auditor
in 2006.

Community:

Board member Children Unlimited, Inc.. Conway NH "Non- Profit'
Board member B^n Revltalization Committee. Berlin NH 'Non- Profit"
Past member of the advisory board and ccnfesigner for the Myotonic Dystrophy
Foundations first website.
Previous owner end webmaster for the Myotonic Dystrophy Information website.

License;

Held an Electrlcel Journeyman license NH
Held an Electrical Contractcr License AZ

References: Available upon request.



PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY and SKILI^

Operations Manager with experience and overslte of Rnandal. Quality Assurance and Operations
oomponents for non-profit organizations and small businesses. Professional, flexible with proven
analytical skills. Demonstrated record of effective problem solving, sound business judgement arxJ
customer service.

✓ Busfnecs Development Planning & Budgeting ✓ Staff and Sutxoreractor Managerrwre
✓ Sage/MIP Fund Accounting, GAAP & ROMA ✓ CCcnt ft Vendor Relations
✓ Asset Management / Volunteer Retadons
✓ EjOemi^ dairy use of Microsoft Excel ✓ CertBtcate. LEAN Six Sigma Green Deft. USM 20IS
v' Contract Negotiation, Adminkuation & Compfiance / Cerdffcste. ̂ ject Management, USM 20t4

PROFESSIONAL EXPftOENg

DMshtt Operations Hanagtr Since April 2019
TrXounty CofTUTwUiy AcUon Program, acrfln.' New Hampshire

Operational, AdrrilnistratNe and Fiscal overslte for Government and Utility funded programs that
provide home efUder^cy, Insufation and heating system upgrades to Income eligible-households In
Carrol), Coos and Grafton Counties, New Hampshire.

t Operodonal ovcnagtt of UWty HEA and hpwES. and PeOenl DOE and DHHS low income Weatherization, Heat Syitem
repair arxl replaccmerYt programs.

• Oversee aD aspects of Program operations and Projea hUrragement Including; program budget development and
authorbidon of expenditures according to contracted budget agreements. cBert eUgliifilty artd program complarKC,
hirtng ozliing, supiervlsing and evaluating department staff.

Inskte Pretiwtion Meneger
TC HaffOR) Daaemert Systems. Wdls, ME 2018

Inside Pnxfuctfon Manager responsible for managing scheduling and dose out of dry basement '
systems installs. .

• Uahon wth homeowno throughout scheduling. Install end doseout processes. Liaison wfth sales team and Outside
Production Martager to ensure proposal, instaSation and matertal costs met dtent opectaclons. company standartls
and warraniy reqtdrements for dry basement systems.

Project Meneger
PATCO Construction, Sanford. HE 2016-2018

Project Manager responsible for managing residential home construction process throughout the
planning, scheduling, material procurement and construction processes.

• Liaison Id nomcowner throughout entire construction process from conbact signing to closing. Weekly telcphorte
update and change order esUmate end martagemenL Maimaln master schedule on Scriklcr Trend project mar^agement
software. Schedule suh<Dntractors. k\spect wbrX to project spec.. Issue rework ar^ approve invoices for payment
Job coa overslte. matenab ordering and inventory managcmaht.

Director, Housing end energy SenHces 2009-2016
The Oppor^tdiy ABarKC, South ̂ and, ME



Business, Fiscal, dpcratJonal and Compliance responsibility for federaily funded programs that provide
home energy and emergency assistance, HQS home repair, and home efficiency and insulation
upgrades to income eligible households in Cumberland and Yortc County, Maine.

• Conir3ct, ̂ entfofwl and FHcrf ovcigw of Federal DOE and OHMS tow hoome WeathertMHon, Central Heat
irnprovement and ElTidency Maine En^ Conservation Pi^rams.

♦ * . •

• pwsee all sub-grantee contractual responsibilftin of dtent intalce, certircatton and ber^fit deremynatlon, progrem
Irvlegrfty and compflance for Federal OHHS UHEAP Grant, prcvkflng hcpne heating beneftts to approximately 3,500
'toHncoroe Cumberlartd County households annual^-

. Ovenee an aspects of Program end Project Minagefrrem iKludIng; client eOgJbaty and prognm compliance of NMLS
Ucensed Agency LeniSng tor MUO, MSHA, Maine OECD and Cumberland County Communliy Development Program
fundlno supported home repair, home renowtton and energy effciency upgrades of very bvr to rrwderate ̂ rrre
households in Cumberland and York County.

Susmess Msneper 2006 - 2009
SmwtCatalog. Portiend, ME •

Managed all buslnea activity for national cataioger providing Office of the Registrar course catalog
and other legally binding documents to colleges and universities In the United States and Canada.

Accocnt/nffAaodBtt 2004 • 2006
Southern Maine Agency on Aging, Scarborough, ME

Responsible for business office functions of AP/AR and Payroll for non-profit agency. In this position, 1
was accounting liaison for avariety of programs among othcrs,and was responsibie for accurate
payroll processing for departments that operated 24/7/365.

ftotaf/ Catatog atufAdvartMng Photographer 1998 • 2004
HoMdI-Ud., Portland. ME

Managing studio photographer for New England's first digital commercial photography studio
responsible for project management, process woridlow, and capacity and demand management.

C&UCAIlQd

Bachelor of Artiy Geography
Unfi^enay ofNiine. FmNrgton, JSeJ

Continuing Studies, Business, Accounting, Project Management and Human Resources
UnhwOycT Southern Mitre, ongoing

COMMUNTTV SERVIQP

BIddeford School Commlttee,.Vice Oialrman

• Co-Chalrmin, Curricutum Commlttao; Rntnce Commlte*; Personnd Committee; Oiief NegottAtor (CoOecSve
Bargaining] Elected to CDruecuUve 2 year terms In 2006 and 2006. Served during-pertod that school system
undertook • $30 tnniloo doflar renovadon of Wddefbrd High School.

Central America Volunteer work
Heredia, CosU Pica & Sen Bemedino Guatemala

• Travel to Costa Wca h 2D06 & Guatemala ir) 2009 with a wofunteer (earn to buid a timber frame vocaborwl centtf and
water Atratlon system. ■ ^

Refenncos ovtOoOte upon ttijuesi



Dennis Downs

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Skilled Energy Auditor with opcneoce in the Energy Cosiervation iodostry. Fomiliar udtb t Houta u a SyituD.
Expeiieoced in Blower Door Tuting.

Skills -

• Self-tBOCivat«d • Ooal oriented fasl tca/ner
• StrODg vcrbei conummicAtioa • Make safety apriority
• Mechiisically Inclined • Committed to raaJdng (he client ba^^y
• Acciutomed CD woridng in all weather ooixlitions • Have btowledgeofheutd and power tooli
• EagotokaranewikiLla

... _ . ... Work History

Productiosi Supervi tor, 04/19SM io Current

Tri County Cap - 30 Exchange St Berlin NH 03570
•  Supervise multiple wetiherization teams doing single ramtly and multi-family initailatiana.
• Ovoiee maintfaance and management of warehouse, including keeping inventory and ordering of

malcrials.

•  Perform energy audits to determine (he most cost efTectivc energy tniprovements.
• Obtained documents, clearances, cerrificatei and spprovalt from local, state, and fiederal agencies.
•  Prodaction management of crtws to meet deadlines and budget objectivca.
• Working directly with client to achieve a more energy efficient home.

pBcker/Inipcctor, 09/1993 to 04/1994

JenFoot AsMrica Inc - LitUaton hidustriaJ Park Littleton NH 03 5d 1
• Managed a line of three to four workers.
• hspecled rubber boots for bopegfections.

Laborer, 07/1993 to 09/1993 >

LA BoviroomeotaJ - Louseville Kentucky
• Helped resoove sludge from the pollurion control lagoons at Simpson Paper Co in Oilman VT.

Apprentice Electrician. IQ/J992 to02/1993
Royal Electric - Woodfvtlle NH

• Work under coultiple master electricians wiring the new i School.

EDUCATION

Associate of Allied Sdeoce: Electrical Conitrvction, 1992
KH VncatMeal Technical College - Prcacott Hill, Lacooia, NH 03246

CERTIFICATIONS

• BPI Quality Control Inspector • BPl Energy Auditor
•  Lead Safe Renox-ator • CPR/Fint Aid

• OSHA 30 • Valid Ddveit License



JESStCA YOUISI©

Skills

'Operational Leadership

'Reporting Requirements

'Proactive Mindset

'Persuasive Communication

Styte

'Document Management
•Team Oriented

Education

May 2011 - SVhite

Mountain Community

College, Berlin nh

Associates Degree •

Business

Management/Medical

Concentration

Professional Summary •

Multi-talented Program Supervisor driven to optimiie processes anb Improve
productivity to maximlie program successes. Extensive experience in management with

a strong work ethic. Exceliing and maintaining financial documentation end reporting to

department heads. Polite with a professional approach to dally tasks. Ready to take

each year of my Tri-County Community Actbn Program career to the next level as the

Office/Program Supervisor for the Weatherlzatlon Departmertt.

Work Experience

Ofyicc/Pfoeram Supflrvisor; Trt'Countv CAP. Porlin NH: April 2019-CurTcnt

In this position 1 am responslbleforprogram and office functions of the Weatherbation

Department. My responsibilities include supervising, providing equality oversite,

Inquiring performance measurement, supply training, and/or coordination of training

for the office staff. In coordination with the Division Director, my role is to record

revenues and expenses to our fiscal department. Invoice our funders for payment of

servlcescompletedbyourweatherbatlondepartment. I provide guidance to our office

staff on client Intake with a priortiy scheduling focus. I do work collaboratively with the

Production Supervisor ensuring the scheduling of energy audits Is sufficient, I procure

job supplies and materials for weatherlzation jobs, and give guidance to the
coordination of heating system installations for both failing heating systems and

emergency no*hcat sKuations. I am here to provide supervision and leadership to office

staff, presently including; the Weatherlzation Adrr.inisuator and the Procurement,

Inventory and FadKties Specialist.

Office Manager; Gofham FamHv Dentistry. Gcfham NH: May 2011« Mav 2016

Supervbedatotalof 6 staff members. Managed IT problems and Issues with research and technical support. ControDed

computer Issues by trouble-shooting issues in the network. Maintained computerized schedules for S doctors and 2

hyglenists. implemented a plan for each new student dentist from UNE every 3 months. Handled insurance daims,

entered Insurance payments, adjusted patients ledgers, and administered bills via mail. Answered mutti-Dne telephone

while checking patients in and out. Created treatment plans and discussed payment options whh patients. Was

responsible forstaff and patient relations. Created marketing ideas for Facebook and newspapers. Trained staff on front

end procedures. Enforced HIPAA guidelines by coordinating annual trainings for HIPAA compliance. Scheduled meetings
for open enrollment and coordinated Aflac representation to assbt with secondary options.

Customer Service Manager! Walman. Gorham NH; October 2000-0ctober 2008

Supervised staff members from several departments throughout the store. Trained new hires on front end procedures

andeffeaivc time management. Scheduled cashiers and service desk associate to designated areas while maintaining

the schedule throughout the day Implementing reliefs for breaks, lunches, and end of shifts. Attended Share Holders

meetings in reference to stock owned and new options coming up. Managed storewide associate register issues and/or
customer relation questions. Collected surplus of cash In register tills to drop off to the accounting office. Designated
associates during each shift to assist with reorganizing the stock on shelves for customer accessibility.



Samantha Roy

QuaUficatione

ACCURATE I EFFICIENtI DETAILED
Cumpcdie^uve kaowlcdgc of Kcnu/tring pcncpla, pjyroU, and (m Iiv*. Eicnordinu)- anention lo dcnil vfth
ke«n tbIUcy to ptcpuc and antlyie fmtndaJ iq>on*. Eapomc in Void, EiccI, QutcLBooki aofrvait, and m
prapuativn loftwttc. Fanitliar «rirh entering data, GUn^ icrvidng tnvoica. billing, and paying emplojivca. Willingnqa
to go above and beyond job description. Put leamcr with proven ability to adapt to new technology, procedtitva.
and office equipment.

Areas offixpcrtise
^ Accounra Pa)ab)e/JUceivab)c /
^ Receprioniit ^
^ Dira lnp« /

Bank Rrcondlitiion. ^

financial Repuciin| ^
Month>End Qoaings /
10 Key by 1'oudi ^

Tax Recum Prcpantion ^

Aeenuniing So^ara
ExeeJ Spreadtheett
Microioft NVoid

Power Point

Professional Experience
WEATHERIZATION ADMINISTRATOR

TRKOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM Berlin. NH 0.1570 603-752-7OO1
Eleven menthj apchenee in cicdcal and coordinanon wi>rk. Dudes mchide: mainraining hating i)aieTnj'
ptogrtmt data eollcaion. asaiating with waihedaidon reporting, coordinating heat intent work, pipcrwock,
aubconirartof conrracu, receiving and procaiing dicni calls for all pcogtami and hiadiag, raponding lo dicni
oUa, refianls, and fuel vendors, maniging watheriraikin fleet, and pa/orming basic office ftmctinnt.
RERVICR ADVISOR

BERUN CITY FORD Goeharo, NH 03570 003-752-6644
Four )Tan czpencnce of clerical work and customer letviee Daily duiia included managing group of technichmt
and dispatching woA as achcdulcd. WoA included: answering phonea, customer aorvice, flbng coping invoices,
typing «Uu cnity, recording and tracking invcniory. inpurting new invenioty. invoicing, peomoting and acUing
Ktvice, intntging techniciani, and ntaiotaining Kcounii payiKtc ind accoimta rccdvabie.

IN.SinR SMPA REPRESENTATIVE

PORTLAND CLASS Gorham, NH 03581 603-752-5507
Twr> yean apetiencc of derxaJ work aa an Inaide Sales Repracnrtrive and opentirig of the store daily. Outia
included: answering phones, customer service, filing, cup}-in|. invoicing, scheduling quotiog typing, data entry,
monthly inventory, reeeiving produn. ordnirtg ptudua, receri'ing and ending bilb, apente reporu, making hank
depeaiti. doscout tcporu, contacting vcndon, eniedng payroll, wage umagm, and monthly Enandal itatemcnii.

VohintecrExperience
VOLUNTEER TAX PRRPARER

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER Gorham, NH 03.Sflf 6U3.466-5I9<1
Voluntccml for the VHTA Ptogrtm. Accuntriy worked on and ptepanri Individual and Small Butinas Federal
Income Tax reiucna. Aswted in the preparation t>f Vcimonr itate tax rviums, aa wdl aa Raident Alien's tax
ruums. Highly capable ofpccpadng tax rerums with sodil accuriiy income, rcriremeni income, tuhioo stttemcnra.
unemployment income, inicrcst on bank accounu. and Jividendi Ctom banks. Intcmid Revenue Servia CcTtiltcd
Tax Ptepara for 2(110 & 2011 lax renima.

Education

WHITE MOUNTAINS COAtMUNITY COLLEGE

Auediirt Degrea: Accounting & Busincai Adminiatrabon
CcniCcaic Entreptcneurah^
Bedin, NH 03570

PHI TKETA KAPPA

White Mowtaina Community College
Pcaidcni 2011-2012

Member Since 2U10


